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Corporate Information 2 8 & #
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Management Discussion and Analysis B & R B0 M7

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The year 2012 was an extremely tough year. Due to slump of
commodity prices, the Group recorded a 35.5% decrease in
turnover of approximately HK$2,707 million, compared with last
year. Gross profit, compared with last year, dropped 46.8%, a
decrease of approximately HK$83.8 million. In addition, with
impairment losses on goodwill on the magnetite iron ore mining
project in Shandong of approximately HK$394 million, the Group
recorded loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$465 million, which was very exceptional in past ten years.

Steel Trading

In 2012, global crude steel productivity was approximately 1,548
million tons, in which China productivity accounted for 46.3%,
reaching 716 million tons. Even if the production growth was
slowing down, global crude steel productivity still hit a record
high. The excess of supply over demand was unable to change.

Due to downfall of the world’s economy, the European sovereign
debt crisis triggered market panic. The international trade
protectionism intensified. Macroeconomic austerity measures in
China continued. Economic growth slowed down and demand
shrank. That made both steel production enterprises and traders
all faced severe challenges.

During the period under review, save for a temporary rise in the
first quarter of 2012, China steel prices dropped almost
throughout the year, up to 25% decline and slump continued for
a long time, which was seldom seen over the years. Slower than
expected recovery in peripheral economies; weak domestic
currencies in markets such as the European Union, India and
Vietnam including an almost 20% depreciation in India Rupees;
rise in trade protectionism; and more anti dumping investigations
and arbitrations against China, all led China’s steel product
exports squeezed and the whole industry comprehensively loss-
making, a situation which was even worse than that of the
financial tsunami in 2008.

The iron ore trading was drastically affected. Iron ore imports were
stuck in China’s major ports for several months, accumulating a
high level stock of over 100 million tons iron ore. Affected by such
huge stock of iron ore and the sale and purchase of steel products
remaining weak, iron ore prices were dramatically dropped 40%
from high to low.

Under such circumstances, the Group’s sales volume was
comparatively lower than that for last year. With decrease in steel
transaction amount per ton at the same time, turnover dropped
substantially. Relatively great loss making in execution of certain
contracts under such volatile market dramatically affected the
overall performance of this business segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B & R B0 M7

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Processing

During the period under review, overall sales volume of the steel
processing plant in Dongguan rose slightly compared with the
same period last year. Inventories had been drastically reduced
and cost was cut. However, due to export business to US and
European markets remained fragile, the Group recorded a loss in
this business segment.

Investment in Mineral Resources

Management restructuring was completed at the end of the year
before for the Tai Xin minerals project, which the Group holds
70% of its equity interest. Heightening and reinforcement works
of its tailing warehouse had been undertaken as required by the
rectification opinion of the domestic safety supervision
department. After successfully passing safety inspection, a safety
production permit was obtained in the middle of 2012. The plant
is at the preparatory stage to resume production.

On 31 August 2012, the Group accepted an offer and entered
into an agreement to sell the entire equity interest in the Tai Xin
minerals project held by the Group for a cash consideration of
HK$250,000,000, details of which were specified in the relevant
Company’s circular dated 12 October 2012. As additional time is
required for the purchaser to complete financing for the
consideration, the completion date has been extended to shortly
after 31 May 2013. Impairment losses on goodwill of
approximately HK$394 million arising on acquisition of the Tai Xin
minerals project was recorded at the year end.

Commercial Property Investment

The Group’s integrated shopping mall located in Yangzhou,
Jiangsu Province of China continues to provide stable rental yield.
Further to the completion of renovation of basement, fourth and
fifth floors of the mall in 2011, the Group had also successfully
completed the refurbishment of third floor in the third quarter of
2012. Rental income had been raised substantially by 25% when
retail space of third floor was re-leased. The entire shopping
environment and collection of fashion have brought to shoppers a
fresh new look and catered to meeting increasing demand of local
shoppers’ need.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &% /& 5 5 82 2 47

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Commercial Property Investment (continued)

During the period under review, the renowned retail property
leasing business operator, in which the Group has made
investment in its shares, has engaged contracts for leasing and
operating retail areas over 380,000 square meters. Four retail
properties, located respectively in Shanghai, Wuxi and Zhenjiang
and having a total area around 130,000 square meters are already
in operation. Other property projects with a total retail area of
about 250,000 square meters are now under preparation and
under leasing. These projects are located respectively in Beijing,
Shenzhen, Shanghai and Changzhou. This retail leasing business
operation has been able to attract a famous PRC private equity
fund to become a strategic investor as well as a Singapore fund
investor to become one particular project investor.

Looking forward to 2013, it will be still full of uncertainties for the
business environment. Following relief to European debt crisis and
US fiscal cliff expected to be resolved, the global economy is
slowly recovering. The Chinese Government has launched variety
of measures to stimulate economy since a year ago. A number of
large-scale infrastructure projects have been approved. Market is
significantly being revitalised. Aiming that the new management
of Chinese Government comes to effect, the market is full of
expectation on its measures on the stability and the growth.

Stepping into 2013, with the help of market rebound and
inventory replenishment, demand on steel in China and the
Southeast Asia has significantly been improved in recent months.
Iron ore and steel prices have rebounded following more than six
months’ drop and transactions have become active.

In the coming year, the Group’s aims are to work hard on our
core businesses and to turn loss into profit.

In respect to the steel trading business, the Group will continue to
extend our business globally, strengthen resource procurement
and sales network in China and abroad, strictly control operating
costs, strengthen end-user base, develop those higher stabilization
business such as high-end products, in order to mitigate market
risk and achieve better operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &% /& 5 5 82 2 47

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In respect to the iron ore trading business, besides continuously
execution of the existing long-term iron ore contract with FMG,
the Group will continue to explore new mining cooperation
opportunities in order to secure stable supply and strengthen the
long-term services for steel users. As iron ore futures trading has
more and more financial attributes, the Group will, on the basis of
spot trading, maintain cautious in participating hedging business
of iron ore for hedging risk.

In respect to the steel processing business, the Group will continue
to cut costs, reduce inventory, strengthen marketing capability,
striving to secure more contracts in order to turn loss into profit by
increasing sales volume and gross profit per ton.

In terms of the Group’s retail property investment, Yangzhou
Times Square has established a profound landmark status in the
local retail market. In 2013, the management team will continue
to strengthen marketing and leasing programs of the shopping
mall, upgrading the tenants’ quality as well as the shopping
environment of the common area on the first and second floors,
aiming to consolidate the income growth of the mall. Meanwhile,
the retail property located in Futian, Shenzhen having an area of
54,000 square meters is now under renovation and closing of
lease agreements with a number of major chains of Hong Kong
supermarket, food, beverages and cinema. The Shenzhen mall is
expected to be opened by end of 2013 or in early 2014. Its
opening has not only generated income but also brought in new
opportunities for business expansion in the retail property leasing
operation.

To conclude, the Group would turn a new page and, therefore, it
will work very hard to boost operating revenue and to achieve the
aim to turn loss into profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B & R B0 M7

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total equity of the Group decreased substantially to
approximately HK$ 1,743 million at 31 December 2012 mainly for
a repurchase of 685,700,000 shares from the minority shareholder
of Tai Xin Minerals Limited at the fair value of contingent
consideration of approximately HK$71.3 million during the year
and the impairment losses on goodwill of HK$394 million at the
year end. However, there was no significant change in the Group’s
liquidity position for both of the repurchase of shares and the
impairment of goodwill were non-cash transactions. At 31
December 2012, the Group had cash and balances of
HK$229,497,000 (2011: HK$246,610,000) with the current ratio
of 1.44, as a ratio current assets to current liabilities (2011: 1.48).

During the year, several bank loans were successfully arranged to
extend their maturities to enhance the Group’s liquidity. The
Group's gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings net of total
cash and cash equivalents to total equity, was maintained at 0.46
(2011: 0.42) as at 31 December 2012. The total borrowings of the
Group were approximately HK$1,001,000,000 (2011:
HK$1,146,000,000) as at 31 December 2012 and their maturity
profile as agreed with the lenders was as follows:

Within one year —FNRN
Between one and two years —E-FR
Between two and five years ZERFNA
Over five years HmAF

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Euro,
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged interest at
prevailing market rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group's receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in US Dollar, Euro, Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar.
The Group considers that its exposure to exchange rate risk is
modest except for Euro in which less than 15% of the Group’s
receipts and payments were denominated for 2012. To minimise
the exchange rate risk, forward exchange contracts are used when
required, in particular for Euro.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B & R B0 M7

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had the following
outstanding corporate guarantees:

Guarantees for general banking facilities
and loan facilities granted to associates

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to the buyers of the
Group's properties

TR 2 JER

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had contingent liabilities
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$30,800,000 (2011: HK$30,572,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided of approximately HK$12,802,000
(2011: HK$12,722,000) in respect of property, plant and
equipment.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the following assets were pledged: (i)
certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with a net
book amount of approximately HK$94,725,000 (2011:
HK$98,110,000); (i) certain motor vehicles and machinery with a
net book amount of approximately HK$1,681,000 (2011:
HK$4,105,000); (iii) certain investment properties of approximately
HK$879,310,000 (2011: HK$731,433,000); (iv) certain short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$24,665,000 (2011:
HK$25,124,000); and (v) interest of shares in certain subsidiaries.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 534 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are structured and reviewed by reference
to market terms and individual merits. The Group also provides
other staff benefits which include year end double pay,
contributory provident fund and medical insurance. Share options
and discretionary bonus may also be granted to eligible staff
based on individual and the Group performances. Training
programmes for staff are provided as and when required.
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Biographies of Directors EX= R

MR. CHAN SHING, AGED 57
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing Director
in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in
international trading of metal, the processing and manufacturing
of related products, the management of industrial enterprises, the
investment in industrial and commercial properties, and corporate
planning and management. Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr.
CHAN.

MR. SIT HOI TUNG, AGED 47
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy General
Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill Resources
Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export bills operation
for metal trading. He graduated from the Finance Department of
Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had worked for banking sector
and metal trading companies and has over 19 years of experience
in international metal trading and import/export bills operation.

MR. YANG DAWEI, AGED 60
Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980’s, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labour Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province. In
mid-1990's, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently the
Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the Chairman
and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited, the window
company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong. He has got over
20 years of experience in corporate planning and management,
international trade, corporate finance and project investment,
international economic and technology cooperation.
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Biographies of Directors EX= R

MS. LAU TING, AGED 56
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in 1998. Ms.
LAU has over 20 years of experience in business development and
strategic planning, project investment and financial management.
She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing. Ms. LAU is also the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited.

MS. TUNG PUI SHAN, VIRGINIA, AGED 46
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive Director.
Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment Division. She
holds a bachelor’s degree in Management Sciences from the
University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

MR. KWOK WAI LAM, AGED 50
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive Director.
He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s Financial
Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years' experience in the areas
of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

MR. YIN MARK, AGED 55
Executive Director

Mr. YIN joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 1999. He graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Language University and worked for China National
Metals and Minerals Import and Export Corporation (renamed
China Minmetals Corporation) and European multinational steel
manufacturing and trading company. He is currently the President
of Burwill Steel Pipes Limited, and is in-charge of the Group’s steel
processing division and responsible for its daily management,
business planning and development. He has over 30 years of
experience in international metal trading.
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Biographies of Directors EX= R

MR. SHAM KAI MAN, AGED 46
Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director of
Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-charge
of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr. SHAM
graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior to joining
the Group, had worked for a multinational steel trading company
for 7 years. He has over 19 years extensive experience in steel
trading and gains good international connections.

MR. CUI SHU MING, AGED 75
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People’s University of
China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China, Jiangsu
branch, the Executive Director of The National Commercial Bank,
Ltd. and the General Manager of its Hong Kong branch, a Director
and the Executive Vice President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr.
CUl'is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited,
both are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years of
experience in international finance and corporate planning and
management.

MR. HUANG SHENGLAN, AGED 61
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was an executive
director and the deputy governor of China Everbright Bank, Head
Office, an executive director and the general manager of China
Everbright Technology Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Chongging Road & Bridge Co. Ltd.. Mr. HUANG holds
a diploma in Arts from Huazhong Normal University and in
International Economics from Huadong Normal University and a
certificate in International Economic Law from Xiamen University
and in Advanced Management Programme from the Business
School of Harvard University, USA. Mr. HUANG is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited and Symphony Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive
Director of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited.
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MR. CHAN MING FAI, AGED 51
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in October 2011. He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Full Seas Technology Group primarily responsible for the
formulation and execution of the group’s strategy. Prior to that,
Mr. CHAN was the President of a private financial advisory
company, Dandelion Capital Group. He has over twenty years of
experience in investment banking and asset management. Mr.
CHAN had worked for Jardine Fleming Investment Management
with a major responsibility to market unit trusts and asset
management products in Hong Kong and subsequently in various
Asian markets, and was particularly instrumental in the
establishment of Jardine Fleming's investment trust operation in
Japan, Korea and Indonesia. Mr. CHAN also cofounded the KGl
Group, which is a pan-Asian investment bank with shareholders
including major investors and institutions in Asia, where he was
the head of the asset management operation which managed
about USD400 million in hedge funds and other portfolios, and
was also a member of the management committee of KGI Group.
Mr. CHAN received a bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences with
major in Economics from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN
is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

MR. CHIANG BUN, AGED 43
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHIANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in December 2012. He holds a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a LL.B. from
Peking University. Mr. CHIANG is also a Chartered Financial
Analyst charter holder. Mr. CHIANG has held senior roles in
various international banks and financial institutions, primarily
responsible for structured debt and/or equity financing. Mr.
CHIANG has extensive experience in the banking and finance
industry. Mr. CHIANG is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Sunlink International Holdings Limited.
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) presents to the shareholders their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 48.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company as
at 31 December 2012 are set out in the balance sheets on pages
46 and 47.

The Group’s cash flows are set out in the consolidated statement
of cash flows on pages 52 and 53.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development and
commercial property investment.

The Group’s segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 14
— five largest suppliers combined 36

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five major
customers combined is less than 30%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the above
suppliers or customers at any time during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and investment
properties during the year are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment as
at 31 December 2012 are set out on page 159.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2012 are set out in notes 10 and 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar,
US Dollar, Renminbi and Euro. As at 31 December 2012, around
72% of the Group’s bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank loans bear interest at prevailing
market rates.
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to HK$836,751,000
(2011: HK$853,837,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction against the
granting of such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the off-market share repurchase completed on 30 August
2012, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

OFF-MARKET SHARE REPURCHASE

On 31 May 2012, the Company proposed to acquire, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Burwill Minerals Limited (“BML") the
entirety of the 685,700,000 shares of the Company (the
“Repurchase Shares”) allotted and issued in the name of Tai Xin
Holdings Limited and charged in favour of BML in accordance
with the terms of the share pledge dated 31 March 2010 (the
“Share Pledge”) and the share purchase agreement dated 5
November 2009 (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) (as amended
by the two supplemental agreements dated 24 December 2009
and 31 March 2010 respectively) (the “Share Repurchase”). No
consideration is required to be paid to Tai Xin Holdings Limited in
order to effect the Share Repurchase.
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

OFF-MARKET SHARE REPURCHASE (continued)

The Share Repurchase was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 26 July 2012 and was completed on 30 August 2012. All
conditions to the Share Repurchase had been fulfilled and the
Company acquired the Repurchase Shares in accordance with the
terms of the Share Pledge and the Share Purchase Agreement.
Therefore, the Repurchase Shares were cancelled in accordance
with the Companies Act and the number of shares of the
Company in issue following the Share Repurchase was reduced
from 4,875,359,685 to 4,189,659,685.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the share option schemes adopted by the Company
on 6 June 2002 (2002 Option Scheme”) and 8 June 2011 (2011
Option Scheme"), certain options were granted to subscribe for
new ordinary shares of the Company. Details of which are set out
as follows:

(A) 2002 Option Scheme
() Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme
() Purpose of 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of 2002 Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Participants (as stated in paragraph (ii)) to
contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group.

(i) Participants

Any person being an employee, officer, buying agent,
selling agent, consultant, sales representative or
marketing representative of, or supplier or provider of
goods or services to, the Group, including any
executive or non-executive director of the Group.
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A)

0

2002 Option Scheme (continued)

Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under 2002 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group must not exceed 30 per cent. of
the number of issued shares from time to time. There
are no option shares available for issue under 2002
Option Scheme upon its terms of expiry on 6 June
2012.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such Participant in any 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant
for such options would exceed 1 per cent. of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of 2002 Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by the
Board to the grantee, such period to commence on
the date of grant or such later date as the Board may
determine and expiring on the last day of the said
period. Under 2002 Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with the
terms of 2002 Option Scheme on acceptance of the
grant of an option.
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A)

0

2002 Option Scheme (continued)

Summary of terms of 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the options
to be granted under 2002 Option Scheme will be a
price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant at the time the grant of the options is
made to (and subject to acceptance by) the Participant
and will be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant (subject
to acceptance) of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant (subject
to acceptance) of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

The life of 2002 Option Scheme

2002 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on 6 June 2002, after
which period no further options will be granted or
accepted but the provisions of 2002 Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.
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. a ==
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BERRAEST 8 ()
(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued) (A) —ZEZE_EREIE(E)
(I Movements of options under 2002 Option Scheme: () —EEFEREEZE [ EREEE -
Exercise period Number of options
8 BREHE
Exercise outstanding granted exercised cancelled lapsed outstanding
price asat during during during during asat
Date of grant per share from until  01/01/2012 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2012
R® ®»
B8R 01/01/2012 31/12/2012
RHAH fTR® H E BERTE FRRHE FRTR FREH FRAXK  BERTE
HK$
BB
(i)  Directors
s
CHAN Shing 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
TR 06/10/2011 05102013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
SIT Hoi Tung 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
HER 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
YANG Dawei 06/07/2010 05 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
BAE 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 540,000 - - - - 540,000
LAU Ting 06/07/2010 05 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
s 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 06/07/2010 05 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
R 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
KWOK Wai Lam 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
BER 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
YIN Mark 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
FI 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
SHAM Kai Man 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
SR 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
CUI Shu Ming 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
EEH 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 540,000 - - - - 540,000
HUANG Shenglan 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
EBHE 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - - 630,000
06/10/2012 05/10/2013 540,000 - - - - 540,000
MIAO Gengshu (Note 2) 06/07/2010 0.5 06/10/2010 05/10/2013 630,000 - - - (630,000) -
HHE W) 06/10/2011 05/10/2013 - - - - - -

06/10/2012 05/10/2013 - - - - - -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(A) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)

(I Movements of options under 2002 Option Scheme:

(continued)
Exercise period
68
Exercise
price
Date of grant per share from until
B8R
REAH K4 H z
HKS
ot
(i)  Directors (continued)
2(4)
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael 06/07/2010 05 06/10/2010 05/10/2013
(Note 2) 06/10/2011 05/10/2013
BT (HE2) 06/10/2012 05/10/2013
(i)  Continuous contract 06/07/2010 05 06/10/2010 05/10/2013
employees 06/10/2011 05/10/2013
EHAHES 06/10/2012 05/10/2013
28/03/2011 0.5 28/04/2011 27/04/2014
28/04/2012 27/04/2014
28/04/2013 27/04/2014
Total:
oy
Notes:
1. The options are recognised as expenses in the financial statements in

accordance with “Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 2. Other
details of the value of options granted during the year and the
accounting policy adopted for the share options are set out in notes

21 and 2.23 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

2. Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael resigned as

Directors of the Company on 1 October 2011.

2 —
B8 (&)
(A) —ZETBERETE(E)
() ZEZE_JEIREFEE T EREE
(&)
Number of options
BREHRE
outstanding granted exercised cancelled lapsed  outstanding
asat during during during during asat
01/01/2012 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2012
® ®
01/01/2012 31/12/2012
Bl R IT 6 FRERM FRTE FREH FREM  BHATE
630,000 - - - (630,000) -
16,030,000 - - - (630,000) 15,400,000
16,030,000 - - - (630,000) 15,400,000
13,740,000 - - - (540,000 13,200,000
840,000 - - - (840,000) -
840,000 - - - (840,000) -
720,000 - - - (720,000) -
85,660,000 - - - (5,460,0000 80,200,000

Bt

BREDE [BBMBIMELRE 25 R
BiRR LRRAR/ZIMIER - REEAKTE
IR BERE BBREN S BRFED
RIBFIR AR A M IMAMFE21 & 2.23

HHBAERLETRER-F——F+A

—ABEARARRES -

2028 HRERERAA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) RS E (E)
(B) 2011 Option Scheme (B) —EZ——ERETE
() Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme () —E—— R E T EE
(i) Purpose of 2011 Option Scheme () —E——BRETEZEHN
The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme is to provide —E——BREI NS 2 E)
incentives or rewards to Participants (as stated in S EE(RAX(GVE) BANEBEE
paragraph (ii)) for the contribution to the Group and HEENTIR M 2 HEI SR - AR
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre SAREBBELHBHAEBEALA
employees and other personnel that are valuable to EEEEANSEZREERET A
the Group. + o
(i) Participants iy 2HEH
Any individual being an employee (whether full-time EGAEFHNA T —— R E
or part-time), officer, buying agent, selling agent, MR 7 ER AT BAA T S EAT
consultant, sales representative or marketing B ATIZEE (THE2R %
representative of, or supplier or provider of goods or FR) . T AR EER
services to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries, B .M ERERImRAES
including any executive or non-executive director of E RN REMEEE RS (8
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, who satisfies EARDNTRKEERIMB AT ZE8IT
the criteria set out in 2011 Option Scheme. EERIEHITES) o
(i)~ Maximum number of shares (i) PEMHEE LR
The limit on the total number of shares which may be B — T — —BERRAEST IR B AN
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options AR/ HERMNB AR ZEAET
granted and yet to be exercised under 2011 Option B EE Y mEETE 2
Scheme, together with all outstanding options granted MARITE PRI T P18 BT 2 %
and yet to be exercised under any other share option R EEPREE - A B N B LT
schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary must R R e B 30% o RANIRE B EE - 1R
not exceed 30 per cent. of the number of issued BT IR R TR
shares from time to time. The total number of shares 1% 5 81 2 /& 487,535,968 1% - 1%
available for issue under 2011 Option Scheme as at REHAHXRAFTEBETRAY
the date of this report is 487,535,968 shares, 11.64% o
representing approximately 11.64 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as of that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(B)
0

2011 Option Scheme (continued)

Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such Participant in any 12-month
period immediately preceeding the proposed date of
grant for such options would exceed 1 per cent. of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of 2011 Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by the
Board to the grantee, such period to commence on
the date of grant or such later date as the Board may
determine and expiring on the last day of the said
period. Under 2011 Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with the
terms of 2011 Option Scheme on acceptance of the
grant of an option.

B AERT 8l (&)

(B)
0

=B — R B ()

ZF B BT Z I (B

(iv)

(vi)

B2 RERERED ER

BRERRAEBRAE LRUESD - fd
SEENTERAEEDER T RF
EETHBEERE(RRETE B
AE I R M ARIT M B AR 1R - A
SHERERZERHBRERY
A+ — {8 A #IR A B 21T M rl #E
BT B B BEZRER LB
BEEAEBETROBBE Z21%
NS MZ S R B -

BREAR

EAAIBE AR Al N 5 3 i AR
ANENRIB T 2 HIR AT
RIE-FT——BIREE 2T
PAITE - s B HIRR iR th RE R B
HNEERRE 2 B& B R
WRZHRERR —BELE - RIF—
T-—BREE  EXRAUBB
FIERBBEEITER AR A &S
HiRR -

BB B
iRIE = T —— B B Y

ERBERE2EE  EERAER
R AR SAE T -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(B)
0

(I

2011 Option Scheme (continued)

Summary of terms of 2011 Option Scheme (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the options
to be granted under 2011 Option Scheme will be a
price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant at the time the grant of the options is
made to (and subject to acceptance by) the Participant
and will be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant (subject
to acceptance) of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

The life of 2011 Option Scheme

2011 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from 8 June 2011,
after which period no further options will be granted
or accepted but the provisions of 2011 Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

No options had been granted, exercised, cancelled nor
lapsed under 2011 Option Scheme since its adoption on 8
June 2011.

BT 8l (&)

(B)
0

()

=B — R B ()

ZF R BT Z N (B

(vii)

(viii)

RIEE

RE-ZT——BREASROZE
BHERTBROD ZABE HHRES
REERRET (BFER)2RE
ZBEERAEEL2EE > Wi
R TIERRZ&ESE (@ ROE
B (BFEX)BRES R (KA
REXB)EMRIAEERERMN
P2 YT AE ¢ (b) Bt 7 R IZ A
(BfFEX)BhkiEz B afEe
XB HEBXMEBERERMIIZ
FHTHE  ROBRDzEE -

— TR B 2R

—T—BRESE zAREHE
T-—FXANBREF BBt
FHRBTISERHSERER
BhiE T —EREE
FEXHEEEETEMDEE T RY
5 o

BT ——BRESSHNR - —FRX
ANBHERMNZES  HBEBRE_T——
FEARRE T B H B AR HE - TR R
1718 -~ eE SRR -
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Mr. CHIANG Bun (appointed on 21 December 2012)

In accordance with bye-laws 85 and 92 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Messrs. SIT Hoi Tung, SHAM Kai Man, HUANG
Shenglan and CHIANG Bun shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 10 to 13.

EE

ARARAFERRAEARETTARLZES

FHT
HITES

BRI SE &
BERAE
BAERE
EllC R g
A kilipgu
BEFRLE
FALELE
SRR E

BYFHITES

EERLA
EBELA
PeR A 88 o A2
BEE (R —E——F+_-_HA=-1+—H
EZ(F)

TRIEARR Z B2 AN 85 R 5 92 1R 2 47
EBEBRSA  ZRUEE - EBERER
BREENEERFAEFRE LEER - ERE

BB EREE -

ARBBEFZEEEHIINEI0BEEFI13E °
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Report of Directors EEFiR%

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company (including those
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have
interests and short positions under the provisions of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

ESERTHRARRESG  HMERORES
EREENEER AR

KWoT——F+-A=+—A  REKAFE
PR RS G (1 38 % R M S5 ) 55 352
AR AT IO BEMATH - RIS -
W2 A FRITESR DOEETFABAAD
ARBRA - ARTEEERTRARNAR
AISRE B (23 2845 R E (0
EXVER) B  ABBAIR D & 5 R A i
PR DI A PO SRR
BT

RRB R K AR D S

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERROREERGHE
Approximate
percentage in the
Personal Family Corporate Company’s issued
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total share capital
HNERRBERT
EEpA AR RikER NRER ny RAERE
CHAN Shing 115,474,521 (1) 108,442,601 (L)  1,729,266,037 (L) ~ 1,953,183,159 (L) 46.62% (L)
BRI (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2)  1,406,427,301(S)  1,406,427,301 (S) 33.57% (S)
(Bt 1) (Brit1k2) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Hit3%4) (Hfiz4)
SIT Hoi Tung 8,813,869 (L) - - 8,813,869 (L) 0.21% (L)
BER (Note 1)
(Bet1)
YANG Dawei 1,800,000 (L) - - 1,800,000 (L) 0.04% (L)
BAE (Note 5)
(Hi7t5)
LAU Ting 108,442,601 (L) 115,474,521 (L)  1,729,266,037 (L) ~ 1,953,183,159 (L) 46.62% (L)
2 (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 6)  1,406,427,301(S)  1,406,427,301 (S) 33.57% (S)
(Hriz1) (Kizt1%6) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Mit3R4) (Hrit4)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 26,125,226 (L) 110,000 (L) 7,104,000 (L) 33,339,226 (1) 0.80% (L)

EmMm

(Note 1)
(B 1)

(Note 7)
(Hf:%7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT EER{ITHARNRS - HERORES
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BHREENEZRAE (&)
DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company AATRGD RABBR O RER (&)
(continued)

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERROKEERDHA
Approximate
percentage in the
Personal Family Corporate Company'’s issued
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total share capital
HEERBRERT
e B AR RikER NRER ny RAE R
KWOK Wai Lam 4,400,000 (L) - - 4,400,000 (L) 0.11% (L)
FER (Note 1)
(Bt 1)
YIN Mark 4,400,000 (L) - - 4,400,000 (L) 0.11% (L)
Fir (Note 1)
(Baz1)
SHAM Kai Man 4,400,000 (L) - - 4,400,000 (L) 0.11% (L)
EREX (Note 1)
(Mfat1)
CUI Shu Ming 1,800,000 (L) - - 1,800,000 (L) 0.04% (L)
BEER (Note 5)
(H7t5)
HUANG Shenglan 1,800,000 (L) - - 1,800,000 (L) 0.04% (L)
EIHE (Note 5)
(WiEs)
Notes: Biat -
1. Among these interests, 4,400,000 underlying shares were share options. 1. I &R E E H 4,400,000 A% AR A A% 1) /&8 i A -
2. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing. 2. SRR HE - BT AR EEZ
B

3. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory Add"), a 3. 1,290,961,336 MR A E R BIE L+ 2B HAE X

wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a company which is wholly- Favor King Limited i 8 H 2 & [f{ & 2 & Glory Add
owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting). 226,403,853 shares were Limited ([ Glory AddJ) #§ & © 226,403,853 fi% B3 Hang
held by Hang Sing Overseas Limited (“Hang Sing”) which is owned as to 51% Sing Overseas Limited ([Hang Singl) #§ & - Orient
by Orient Strength Limited (“Orient Strength”), a company which is wholly- Strength Limited ([ Orient Strength |) 4§ /& Hang Sing
owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. 211,900,848 shares were held S1%E @ MR Mk &£ Kk B E L+ 8
by Strong Purpose Corporation, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. % & ¥ 5 Orient Strength ° 211,900,848 fi% /1 Strong
CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. Purpose Corporation#575 » BRI &£ R BIE L+ %

& ¥ Strong Purpose Corporation ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting are deemed to
be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the same shares.

5. Among these interests, 1,800,000 underlying shares were share options.

6. These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms. LAU Ting.

7. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants Limited, a
company which is wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

8. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short
position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or were
deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

EERTHRARRESG  HMERORES
BRREENESERLR (E)

AATRG RAEBER D RS ()

fiaz - ()

4. H BRI S A R Blis Azt 2 RE SR AR A R UL RO A
T AR A AR ©

5. Itk Z 25 8 1,800,000 A AR B A 1 /88 s AR A -

6. I EREHRREEHEE - RUEERIBELLZ
BeAg -

7. 7,104,000 fi £ & {7l 3 & &+ & & ¥ H < 2 & Focus
Cheer Consultants Limited 574

8. [LIRREFE : [SIRTKR -

BrENFIBEEEN RZTE—=F+=A
=t+—HB  ARAZTEERITRATIBMENR
AEIREE AR EE (T LEHFRPERK
BIEEXVER) 2B H - G RESFETHEE
IR FRE S MBI E G PIHR A A Rk
KRB RLERTE IR R 5 R HIE 5101 58 352 {5 ATIR
EABFE 2 ELMA - KBENERE ETARE
BRTEFR HNEZETRBAAQE KB
Ffr °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions in the shares and

FERRRROKRAEBRD P EFOES
KRR

R_T——F+_A=+—H REARFR

B

/3N A

R AEIGRPIE B IRFTRERATRTEZ

BRMms - ATAL(RRRIERERITHE
FERIN) MAR BB S ARRE A {0 o B #E 2t

underlying shares of the Company: BKE
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares B R AERE R D e
Approximate
Number of percentage in
ordinary shares & the Company’s
Name of shareholder Nature of interest underlying shares  issued share capital Note
EERROR SRR N
REREHE EEME HERGEE ERTRABMOE  fT
Favor King Limited Corporate 1,290,961,336 (L) 30.81% (L) 1
NS 1,290,961,336 (S) 30.81% (S)
Hang Sing Overseas Limited Beneficiary 226,403,853 (L) 5.40% (L) 2
B 115,465,965 (S) 2.76% (S)
Orient Strength Limited Corporate 226,403,853 (L) 5.40% (L) 2
NS 115,465,965 (S) 2.76% (S)
Zhong Shan Company Limited  Corporate 226,403,853 (L) 5.40% (L) 2
EILARAR NG 115,465,965 (S) 2.76% (S)
Superior Quality Assets Limited Corporate 226,403,853 (L) 5.40% (L) 2
NS 115,465,965 (S) 2.76% (S)
Strong Purpose Corporation Beneficiary 211,900,848 (L) 5.06% (L) 3
B
Notes: K -
1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-owned by 1. bt % 21 e Favor King Limited % & # 5 2 2 8 Glory
Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing Add A ° BRI S 4 212 &2+ 2 A #E A Favor King
and Ms. LAU Ting. Limited °
2. 51% of the issued share capital of Hang Sing Overseas Limited (“Hang Sing”) 2. Hang Sing Overseas Limited ( [Hang Sing) ) 2 51%
was owned by Orient Strength Limited, a company which is wholly-owned by BERTRATTHERREERIIELT2EREGZ
Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting, and 49% of the issued share capital of Orient Strength Limited Fit # /& + 5 #MHang Sing 2
Hang Sing was owned by Superior Quality Assets Limited, a company which is 49%EHTRAMNBBEBLUERARZERFZ
wholly-owned by Zhong Shan Company Limited. Zhong Shan Company Superior Quality Assets Limited FT A * &L AR A
Limited was wholly-owned by the Jiangsu Provincial People’s Government of AIFPBI#HEARBN2EHEA 2 A A © Hang
the PRC. These 226,403,853 shares held by Hang Sing formed part of the Sing #5742 226,403,853 [T 7 SUPA 5 Bl 42 B BRI 5t
interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting as disclosed herein. ERBIER T 2R —EM °
3. These interests were held by Strong Purpose Corporation, a company whichis 3. b S 5 BRI ST R BlIE 2 =2 & HE A 2 Strong
wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting, formed part of the Purpose Corporation FT#5 748 » 7348 XA 70 5l #% 52 bR
interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting as disclosed herein. WAEERBIEL L 2 RS —21 -
4. The letter “L” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short 4. [LIRTRFE  [SIRTHKE °

position.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, there was no
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and/or who
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the issued
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group.

MAJOR TRANSACTION — THE PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF
MAGNETITE IRON ORE MINING AND PROCESSING
BUSINESSES IN THE PRC

On 31 August 2012, Burwill Minerals Limited (“BML"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Revenue Generator Limited (the
“Purchaser”) pursuant to which BML has conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire 70.12%
(i.e. the Sale Shares) of the issued share capital of Tai Xin Minerals
Limited (the “Target Company”) for a cash consideration of
HK$250,000,000 (the “Proposed Disposal”). Immediately after
completion of the Proposed Disposal, the Company will cease to
own any interest in the Target Company.

As mentioned in the circular of the Company dated 12 October
2012, subject to the fulfillment or waiver (as the case may be) of
the conditions precedent in the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
completion for the Proposed Disposal is expected to take place on
the completion date which is expected to be shortly after 21
December 2012 or such other date as may be agreed by BML and
the Purchaser. As additional time is required for the Purchaser to
complete the financing for the consideration, a condition
precedent under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, BML entered
into supplemental agreements to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement with the Purchaser to further extend the completion
date to shortly after 31 May 2013.

OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

On 1 March 2013, the annual salaries of each of Mr. SIT Hoi Tung,
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark
and Mr. SHAM Kai Man were increased by approximately 3.5%.

FERRRROKAEBRD P EFOES
KRB (#E)

BREXHEEEIN R_T——F+_-A
=t—8 > BEEAAL(RRRESRITH
AR SN AR R R AR RER D F R A
s OX B RLER IR IR E 75 S B S 1501 56 336 16
PrfFBEERMA - R/ RERLAEEMFE
BEITRAEENS% XA L - YRAITRE
AERT BREAREEFNETCKE AR
RERAE ERENE ©

FTERS — BRHEPEBMERERF R
IR%

RZE——FN\A=+—H ARF2ENE
REBREEFARAATEREZE] &
Revenue Generator Limited ([ & 77 1) 5] 32 f& 1%
BEEHE  BUBRBECSAKFBRAELE
FEFEERHGMWBEARSRELE
250,000,0007C & ETai Xin Minerals Limited
([B1ERR]])70.12% B BT A (BN 35 & A%
7)) ([HEEZE]D  BEETKHEERRZ AR
AT BEAR B EAR 2 (E R -

BWARREMA-_E——_F+A+-HZE
P - TR ERBEAGTRNDEER RS
RIFHFER R RS R (GARER) - BHER
RRZ BT - KXBRER -_T——F+_H
“tH—BERERRER  RABHBEENRENE
ERMEMBEH - ERNE T FRRINFRE TRE
REFNRE (B EEHRE NURGFZ
—) BERBECHEBTMBRNEEHHERR]
A RESARBE-—TTEE T
—=ZFRA=tT - HERERMERK -

HeRELHHAEIBSIBMEEEZ

R-T—=F=A— B BERLL EM
Mt - SEREE - FEUEERSROULE
ZEFRH BB INAI3.5% °
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes of the Company disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with no specific term of office
or for an initial term of two years (subject to individual contract)
from the date of appointment and will continue thereafter, until
terminated by not less than one to six months (subject to
individual contract) notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years which is renewable for another
three years and can be terminated by notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors offering themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 15 of
Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in relation to the Group'’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which any of the Company’s Directors or members of
its management had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

REROREF 2L

BRANRBIREER EISN  AERAARRTR] - B
23 NI RS INCTE AR NGRS
EREM LT HEARREENRBEARRHE
TR Z B SR SFER M e

EECZRBEHN

ARARZERATEEFHEEHARATIRBAE
% AHMEREECHREZTERENS BE
MEMRFEBRGH)  ERE—ELERES
EA—HRAZ—HELTDPR—ZEXEA (R
FHERNGH) EM@EALIERIE - ARFF
BUFRTEFCHARRLRBEELH - &
HMBEEMASMENS A= BEH=F
ER—HTRAR—HEHEMBAALLEAL -

BRAEPTIEESN  REERRBFAES L&
BEREECES  $IEEAQRR L ENAR
AR —F AR EEE OEERERRIN TIA
RIEZIRFBEH -

EENEN &R

B A M HREAMBEEIN  ARREFN
EEEKBMERRNRB KA BRI
FREINFAFL - BEARKE XSS B
ERAN(ERRBRAER LRI LT
AN e+ N 1516) - T EE R
BHEMEAES -

EEEHN

REREALE] L FHEETAERNRRREE
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EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and the
employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises the three Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr.
CHAN Ming Fai. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed
with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Save for the above, there has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of
the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance is an
essential element in enhancing the confidence of shareholders,
investors, employees, business partners and the community as a
whole and also the performance of the Group. The board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) will review the corporate
governance structure and practices from time to time and shall
make necessary arrangements to ensure business activities and
decision making processes are made in a proper and prudent
manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
December 2012, except for the deviations as disclosed in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Mr. CHIANG Bun (appointed on 21 December 2012)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised twelve
Directors, eight of whom are Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and four of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions against the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of
the Group and determines the policy for the Company’s corporate
governance. It also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The day-to-day running of the
Company is delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company is independent in character and judgement. The
Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group’s business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board meetings
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular board
meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of
matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors have access to
board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information which enables the Board to make an
informed decision on the matters to be discussed and considered
at the board meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.6.5 Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, so they can ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials, as well as recommended some seminars on
the professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 by reading all materials provided by the Company
Secretary and/or attending regular training launched by the
professional bodies during the review period.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals with active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of directors entitled to be present.
As the Company did not announce its quarterly results, two
regular board meetings were held during the year for reviewing
and approving the interim and annual financial performance of
the Group, which did not fully comply with the relevant Code
provision. Board meetings will be held on other occasions when
board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year under review, two regular board meetings and
three general meetings (including annual general meeting for the

BEER#E)

CEFERN  HBETMAEZRRERSH L=
KRR (BRE_ZE——FRRBEFAE) -

year 2012) were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors &= 7 sz f5mT -
are as follows:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
EERER BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRI ST A4
(Chairman and Managing Director) (FEFHEFALCTE) 2/2 1/3
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager) &/ 25 4 (B484% 12 ) 2/2 3/3
Mr. YANG Dawei BRESLE 012 0/3
Ms. LAU Ting Bz iz + 0/2 0/3
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ELbiieqn 2/2 13
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam FPEREE 2/2 3/3
Mr. YIN Mark FAT A 212 073
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRI A 2/2 3/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAKHTES
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLEE 2/2 0/3
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHELE 2/2 1/3
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai Be AR 18 4 A 2/2 3/3
Mr. CHIANG Bun RS
(appointed on 21 December 2012) (R-—F——F+=—_A=-+—H
BEZEE) 0/0 0/0

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer were not
performed by separate individuals as stipulated in Code provision
A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, Mr.
CHAN Shing, currently assumes the role of the chairman and also
the chief executive officer responsible for overseeing the function
of the Board and formulating overall strategies of and organising
the implementation structure for the Company and also managing
the Group’s overall business operations. Given the nature of the
Group's businesses which require considerable market expertise,
the Board believed that the vesting of the two roles provides the
Group with stable and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective planning and implementation of long term business
strategies. The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of
the structure to balance the power and authority of the Board and
the management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws"”) to retire by rotation at least once every
three years. However, in accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-
laws, at each annual general meeting of the Company one-third
of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. All Non-
Executive Directors of the Company had entered into service
contracts with the Company for an initial term of three years
which is renewable for another three years and the Board will
ensure the retirement of each Director, other than the one who
holds the office as Chairman or Managing Director, by rotation at
least once every three years in order to comply with Code
provisions. The Chairman will not be subject to retirement by
rotation as stipulated in Code provision A.4.2, as the Board
considered that the continuity of office of the Chairman provides
the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great
importance to the smooth operations of the Group. Messrs. SIT
Hoi Tung, SHAM Kai Man and HUANG Shenglan are subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws. In addition, Mr.
CHIANG Bun, the newly appointed Director on 21 December
2012, shall hold office until the next general meeting and be
eligible for re-election in accordance with Bye-law 92 of the Bye-
laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr.
SIT Hoi Tung. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is
Mr. CUI Shu Ming.

The Remuneration Committee will meet to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors and the senior management,
and consider and review the terms of service contracts of the
Directors and the senior management. In determining the
emolument payable to Directors, the Remuneration Committee
took into consideration factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, abilities, performance and
contribution of the Directors to the Group, the performance and
profitability of the Group, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry, the prevailing market/employment conditions and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the year ended 31 December 2012. Details of the attendance of
the Remuneration Committee members are as follows:

FHEEE(E)
HE-_Z——F+-_A=1+—HIEFERN %
MEBELRITMAEH  FTNEZESEEK

Bz HRmEEFBENT

Members’ Attendance

ZEHERH

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREE
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FWNZESE/E) 2/2
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERESE 2/2
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EBREE 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23 March 2012
with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties. The Nomination Committee comprises five
members, Mr. CHAN Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. CUI Shu Ming,
Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. Mr. CHAN Shing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee’s duties include:

o to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2012. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members are as follows:

REZES(E)
BE-_Z2——F+-A=+—"HILEFER &
FRLZEEGERITMAEH  BRBREEEWMEZ
B ERCEREEBT ¢

Members’ Attendance

ZEHERH

Mr. CHAN Shing BR 4K ST A
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (lEBEZESE/E) 2/2
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EBREE 2/2
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERPLAE 2/2
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERBESE 212
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREAHE 2 & 212

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Company;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board approved and adopted the terms of
reference on corporate governance of the Board and the
Nomination Committee and also amended the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides the
Board with advice and recommendations. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises three members, Mr. CUI
Shu Ming, Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai. All of
them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee member has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in business,
accounting and financial management in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

o to review and monitor financial reporting and the reporting
judgement contained in them; and

. to review financial and internal controls, accounting policies
and practices with management, internal and external
auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year under
review, two of which was attended by the external auditors, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Details of the attendance of the
Audit Committee members are as follows:
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Members’ Attendance

ZEHERE

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREE
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BERZTEESTFE) 3/3
Mr. HUANG Shenglan ERESE 3/3
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai BREAHE 5 4 3/3
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the EBZZE&DWRERERRE L HAEEERA
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by — Z @&t R RIER] - AKX ZFET « NEBESHE K BF
the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial reporting HHE®REE - HE - ZT—_—F+_-_A=+—H

matters. The audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had engaged
the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
(2011: HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng) and network firms, to provide
the following services and their fees charged are set out as below:

Types of Services PR 7 28 51

Audit of consolidated financial statement &£BEFEE 454 T BHE
of the Group for the year =t

Non-audit services IEEET IR

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set
out on pages 44 and 45.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam is an Executive Director and the Company
Secretary of the Company and he had fulfilled the requirement of
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year. He has
attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year and his biography is set out in the “Biographies of
Directors” section of this annual report.

BB &

HE - Z——F+_A=+t—HItFER " &
BESNEZERBE G EMEBAERAR(Z
T——F : AEIHAEHBM) RBEKER
HUAT RS - WIRERBRBIT :

Fee Charged
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the Company’s
paid-up capital may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited
at the registered office or head office of the Company. If the
Board does not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director
of the Company for election as a director at any general meeting
of the Company (the “General Meeting”), he/she can deposit a
written requisition to that effect at the registered office or head
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary. In order for the Company to inform shareholders of
that proposal, the written requisition must state the full name of
the person proposed for election as a director, include the
person’s biographical details as required by rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) concerned and that person indicating his/
her willingness to be elected. The period for lodgment of such a
written requisition will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the General Meeting and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of the General Meeting. If the
requisition is received less than eleven business days prior to the
General Meeting, the Company will need to consider the
adjournment of the General Meeting in order to allow
shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of the proposal. For
any other resolution(s) to be proposed by shareholder(s) to put
forward, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or not less
than one hundred shareholders may submit a written requisition
to move such resolution(s); and the requisition must be signed by
all requisitionist(s) and deposited for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the registered office or head office of the Company
not less than six weeks before the General Meeting in case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the General Meeting in case of any other requisition
together with sufficient money to meet all relevant expenses. If a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution is received less than
eleven business days prior to the General Meeting, the Company
will need to consider the adjournment of the General Meeting in
order to allow shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of
the proposal.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ E 8%

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by post
to the Company of Unit 1402, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to ir@burwill.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

RERER ()

RO TERFEE s MM HEER 2T
ERBEEARREDEBTBEE—FTHRE
EESBHAABIL4NE KEFBFE
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Independent Auditors’ Report % 37 #Z BB 3§ &

L £

Charipred Ascounissie
Cartifind Public Ascoenfasts

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Burwill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 158, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report % 37 #Z BB 3§ &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan T.S. Lai
Practising Certificate Number: P04165

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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At 31 December 2012

Balance Sheets EE& & &

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Leasehold land and land
use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Due from subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Club debentures
Prepayments
Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Other financial assets

Bills and accounts receivable

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Due from associates

Due from a related company

Income tax refundable

Cash and bank balances

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

RZZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H

BE
FRDEE

HELHRLH
e

nE - WERRE
REME
BIVEE
WELARIKE
I PNIVE
BERARE
SREH
LS
ELREHEE

BIRYEE

RBEE

"=
BoFEERRS
SRR EE
HEMBEE
eSS G
B BERR
HERUK
[IEPNCIVE

B NRRK
BERRRR
QR GRS

B g RRITHER

Note
st

16
10
11
17

Consolidated Company
&a AL

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B®TT  BE%TT  B%TR  B%T
10,722 11,046 - -
431,390 439,611 - -
883,520 819,655 - -
191,033 588,051 - -
- - 52,825 52,522
- - 1,254,922 1,279,293
72,148 97,928 - -
1,509 1,509 90 90
38,540 39,217 - -
42,620 24,899 - _
1671482 2,021,916 1,307,837 1,331,905
107,583 167,815 - -
700 6,360 239 250
- 71,998 - -
1,189,374 1,287,014 - -
149,339 241,143 104 506
- - 698,213 768,236
29,808 185 - -
1.751 1,751 - -
155 - - -
229,497 246,610 31,124 588
1,708,207 2,022,876 729,680 769,580
25,000 - - -
1,733,207 2,022,876 729,680 769,580
3,404,689 4,044,792 2,037,517 2,101,485
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Balance Sheets EE& & &

At 31 December 2012

RZZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H

Consolidated Company
ey YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
His BETT BT BETT BT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to RDRER
owners of the Company BEAELER
Share capital PREN 20 418,966 487,536 418,966 487,536
Other reserves He 22 966,582 966,297 980,550 984,940
Retained profits RE AT 22 66,483 531,538 608,747 625,833
1,452,031 1,985,371 2,008,263 2,098,309
Non-controlling interests RS 290,946 281,222 - -
Total equity FEY: £ 1,742,977 2,266,593 2,008,263 2,098,309
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings BX 23 252,239 228,155 - -
Provision for land restoration THERKIRE
and environmental costs AR 26 4,258 4,226 - N
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFMEHaRE 24 199,198 182,755 - -
Total non-current liabilities BIEREAE 455,695 415,136 - -
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings B 23 748,852 917,788 - -
Due to subsidiaries i NGIERE 10 - - 27,208 882
Due to related companies REGENTIFA 17 23,315 24,079 - -
Bills and accounts payable e 245 MR IRIA 25 239,617 228,595 - -
Other payables and HEeEMRER
accruals JEztE R 190,685 190,712 2,046 2,294
Income tax payable e T3 TE 3,548 1,889 - -
Total current liabilities BREEE 1,206,017 1,363,063 29,254 3,176
Total liabilities mAafR 1,661,712 1,778,199 29,254 3,176
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 3,404,689 4,044,792 2,037,517 2,101,485
Net current assets RBEETE 527,190 659,813 700,426 766,404
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABAE 2,198,672 2,681,729 2,008,263 2,098,309
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
R SBER
Chairman Director
TE 2
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Consolidated Income Statement £ 5EH K

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and net gains

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Share option expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs

Fair value losses on other
financial assets

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on an associate

Share of (losses)/profits of
associates

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company during the year

— basic and diluted (HK cents)

HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HLEFE

Note
et
HE 5
SHE A 28
EF
He WA RRmF5E 27
HERDIHER 28
—MRTBER 28
RS 29
&K (E518),/BF
BB R 30
HEMBEEER
N EER
EESEAE 9
Bt &N BIRE 11
Fir (b B & 1 7]
(B8|), &7 11
M FTiS L AT E 1B
FriSHi i 31
FEEE
(B BANEBEN
KArRIERFER A 32
eI R
FRARBERZTEA
FEER &Rk E 1R 33

— EARR#EE B

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
4,916,324 7,623,154
(4,821,015) (7,444,025)
95,309 179,129
58,758 42,445
(58,211) (56,934)
(102,603) (100,289)
(266) (3,739)
(7,013) 60,612
(53,307) (69,968)
(686) (277,709)
(394,030) -
(2,237) -
(521) 4,668
(457,794) (282,397)
(14) (9,807)
(457,808) (292,204)
(465,055) (304,687)
7,247 12,483
(457,808) (292,204)
(10.01) (6.35)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &2 HER K

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE
2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MtaE BT T BT
Loss for the year FEBE (457,808) (292,204)
Other comprehensive income: HyazmiA :
Share of other comprehensive Fril Bt & 2 =]
income of associates Ee2mE¥%A 22 281 2,899
Currency translation differences EHE N =58 6,501 77,065
Other comprehensive income FEAETEZERA -
for the year, net of tax TR IE 6,782 79,964
Total comprehensive expense FEFALH
for the year ekl (451,026) (212,240)
Attributable to: ERE R -
Owners of the Company NARESEBA (460,380) (235,848)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE RS 9,354 23,608
Total comprehensive expense FEFALH
for the year ek (451,026) (212,240)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4R & # S B &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—BHLLFE
Attributable to owners of
the Company
ARAESE B AR
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity

Bx HeRE RERN  HERER L o
Note HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
i3 ARTT  BRTT  BRTR ARTR BRTx

Balance at 1 January 2011 “E—5-A-AkH 441,536 775,667 836,225 207,838 2,261,266
Comprehensive income EEIL/ON
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(58)/BA - - (304,687) 12,483 (292,204)
Other comprehensive income ETRERA
Share of other comprehensive FrihEE AR

income of associates EEEERA 2 - 2,89 - - 2,899
Currency translation differences ERELER 2 - 65,940 - 11,125 77,065
Total other comprehensive income HEv2ERAEE - 68,839 - 11,125 79,964
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2N/ (X1t 1258 - 68,839 (304,687) 23,608 (212,240)
Issue of shares BIRG 20822 46,000 174,800 - - 220,800
Share issue expenses BRI H 22 - (6,723) - - (6,723)
Dividends RE - - - (249) (249)
Employees share option scheme: (B2 BRI :

— value of employee services —EERKER 22 - 3,739 - - 3,739
Changes in ownership interests in WELAMEERES

subsidliaries without change Z2E)

of control (P maiE) 37 - (50,025) - 50,025 -
Total transactions with owners BEFREANRSEH 46,000 121,791 - 49776 217,567
Balance at 31 December 2011 —E—E&+ZR=1-H

% 487,536 966,297 531,538 281,222 2,266,593
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R & ¥ 8 &

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2012

Comprehensive income
(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates
Currency translation differences
— Group
— Associates

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/(expense)

Repurchase of shares

Employees share option scheme:
— value of employee services

Capital injection by
non-controlling interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2012

“E-—5-f-BE&RH

ZEMA
FE(BR)/BH

LA
%ﬁ%%@
2EKA
E%Eﬁ%@
—£[
— A

EvEERAER

2EMA/ () 8%

RERREANR S
it e B

+
&5

Note
st

22

22
22

20822

22

HE-_T——F+-A=1+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of
the Company
RARRRNEAELS
Non-

Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity
k& HEvRE  REBA  FERER AR
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
487,536 966,297 531,538 281222 2,266,593
- - (465,055) 7,247 (457,808)

- 281 - - 281

- 3,905 - 2,107 6,012

- 489 - - 489

- 4,675 - 2,107 6,782

- 4,675 (465,055) 9,354 (451,026)
(68,570) (4,656) - - (73,226)
- 266 - - 266

- - - 370 370
(68,570) (4,390) - 370 (72,590)
418,966 966,582 66,483 290,946 1,742,977
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 28BS RE R
Bz ZT——H+_HA=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Hong Kong profits tax refunded
Overseas tax refunded

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Capital contribution to an associate
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term
bank deposits
Funds released from/(applied to)
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net
Interest received
Increase in amounts due
from associates
Dividends received from an associate
Dividends received from financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

LEZINRERE
LEEE/(FANERS
ERFLE
ENEBFEHR
EREINMEIR
RIEFBMNEMR
RIBBINIIA

SEEBEL(FF)

FRE

BRETHNRERE
BAME - #Ek
B
BABTEE
ABET—KEE QA
LEYE  HRR
ABATS R
R EIIRITIE X
A (3Em)
Bekye,/ (AR)
RAFEEBERR
WIS EE  FH
B E
NS e N
)i
=Rt QT NET S
BIEAFEBRA
B 5 IR K TS
BERE

REEHEE/ (FTA)H
FRE

Note
HtaE

35(@a)

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
208,841 (12,442)
(53,063) (78,534)
(147) (316)
(3,120) (2,677)
- 190

231 -
152,742 (93,779)
(1,381) (8,879)
(202) (1,683)
(4,603) (2,000)
181 126
29,686 (29,686)
8,523 (6,256)
1,215 1,103
(29,623) -
3,395 4,545
80 85
7,271 (42,645)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 28BS RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE-T——F+-RA=1+—HLLFE

2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETT BT TT

Cash flows from financing activities BEEBNRERE
Issue of shares BITRM - 220,800
Share issue expenses [ BErTZ - (6,723)
Share repurchase expenses % 7 B 8 3 (1,914) -
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans SR ERITERRL (243,960) (127,995)
Additions of other bank loans FIBEBIRITER 295,228 108,940
Repayment of other bank loans EEETIRITER (210,703) (215,038)
Additions of other loans FIEETER 9,289 711
Interest element of finance lease rental NEtEHEE

payments M EE 5 (115) (155)
Capital element of finance lease rental NRERE

payments & ARE D (550) (1,520)
Decrease/(Increase) in BEIPRITFR

pledged bank deposits w3 hn) 459 (22,789)
Dividend paid EfRRE - (249)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFTEAFIR S (152,266) (44,018)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRIREEEWEM

cash equivalents ORL) %58 7,747 (180,442)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—RAZH& R

at 1 January HEZEEY 190,934 370,813
Effect of exchange rate changes EREE) 2 o E 393 563
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—B8z%®%

at 31 December MR EEY 35(b) 199,074 190,934
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
steel trading, steel processing, mineral resources and
commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
22 March 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

There are no HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are effective for the
first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2012 that would be
expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2012,
and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except
the following set out below:

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements” regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to group items
presented in “other comprehensive
income” (OCI) on the basis of whether
they are potentially reclassifiable to profit
or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The amendments do not
address which items are presented in OCI.

HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, was
amended in June 2011. The impact on the
Group will be as follows: to immediately
recognise all past service costs; and to
replace interest cost and expected return
on plan assets with a net interest amount
that is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability
(asset). The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE%%"I‘E{%%E (%)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REBIELE (4Z)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 K EEE IR (E)
(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet (b) RELH FETHER R
adopted (continued) i (E)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, EARVEREENE9
addresses the classification, measurement SIemMTE | BT
and recognition of financial assets and M EERMGEEZ
financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in DB CFHEMER B
November 2009 and October 2010. It BB TSR RS 95
replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate RZEZNF+—AK
to the classification and measurement of —E—FF+ H%E Mo
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires AR T EESS
financial assets to be classified into two MBI E5395% b B 4 Bl
measurement categories: those measured TEHENTEMHEE
as at fair value and those measured at IS o BB TEIRE L
amortised cost. The determination is made A ISR THMIFEE
at initial recognition. The classification SEAWETEHER
depends on the entity’s business model for RAFEEER IR
managing its financial instruments and the B AET 28R o B
contractual cash flow characteristics of the VL EREIELETE -
instrument. For financial liabilities, the NERIEELEEELS
standard retains most of the HKAS 39 BT AEZEBERKRZ
requirements. The main change is that, in TEZAEHNBRERER
cases where the fair value option is taken BME - L I5aEM
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair = ZEARETEHEE
value change due to an entity’s own credit S HEBE395 7 K
risk is recorded in other comprehensive HDIRE - TEFE A
income rather than the income statement, W BEEEIENAY
unless this creates an accounting B 8E  AERAS{E
mismatch. The Group is yet to assess BERRmMESEZ ATE
HKFRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt BENEE S R E A 2 T
HKFRS 9 no later than the accounting AMmIEWZR AR - B
period beginning on or after 1 January EiEeERD A -
2015. The Group will also consider the KREBMATEE B
impact of the remaining phases of HKFRS FRIREHRB|E QI T B
9 when completed by the board of BXEZNBRTER-Z
directors. —RF—H—Hzkz#%&
RS & MR ANE
BB wmEERIFE
R REENGEREE
BRKEBYBmE
ERIEOHRATREERD
& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control as
the determining factor in whether an
entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides
additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this is
difficult to assess. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities”, includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and other off balance sheet
vehicles. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
12’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE%E‘H&%%E (%)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REBIELE (4Z)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 K EEE IR (E)
(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet (b) RELH FETHER R
adopted (continued) i (E)
HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, EE R EERE 13
aims to improve consistency and reduce I AFEEF=]8HE
complexity by providing a precise BIBIR M AT E Y B
definition of fair value and a single source EENAFES=EZE
of fair value measurement and disclosure — OB K A 7 B SR
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The ERBFRAZIEESRT
requirements, which are largely aligned MR — 24 RREE
between HKFRSs and US GAAP, do not MM e ZEMTEANBE
extend the use of fair value accounting but 16T A B TS R & AR
provide guidance on how it should be RERAZRS AR
applied where its use is already required or REXANFEEEHE
permitted by other standards within A e EERESH
HKFRSs or US GAAP. BB SRS R E
B ARETHRAINEAM
IR ESETFHIER
T FE Ln{A] fE AR AR 4 B
5| e
There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) 7 E A [H AR A E
interpretations that are not yet effective B RE ERSE B
that would be expected to have a material (BEBRHEHRERES
impact on the Group. BEg)REBRHKER
SEELEERTE -
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by
virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial
and operating policies by virtue of de-facto
control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE%%"H&%%E (%)
(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBAT(4E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 456KH (&)
(@)  Business combinations (@ EBEr

The Group applies the acquisition method ANEBERWELTE
to account for business combinations. The HIRALE o BN RN B
consideration transferred for the NaEE R EAEE
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values EEE - YW
of the assets transferred, the liabilities BEAFTEEAENAK
incurred to the former owners of the EBFTRITIRAEZR
acquiree and the equity interests issued by NE(E o frEZEAER
the Group. The consideration transferred EHRAREBLHEEZ
includes the fair value of any asset or FREESKBEZ AT
liability resulting from a contingent B > NEBE TR
consideration arrangement. Identifiable B A RIEE R
assets acquired and liabilities and AEZEBEMASARAE
contingent liabilities assumed in a business B NS HRWEBH
combination are measured initially at their NEEEE - NEFIR
fair values at the acquisition date. The FIEWEEEE  DLAF
Group recognises any non-controlling B 55 FE 5 A% 25 PR 1
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- WEE B MR a2 R
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or BEFBZLE - ER
at the non-controlling interest’s R 77 2 (A FE4E
proportionate share of the recognised REHEZS o
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as W BE R B Al AN N EE AR R
incurred. XA o
If the business combination is achieved WEEEFDERE
in stages, the acquisition date carrying 17 B SR A W
value of the acquirer’s previously held U B8 7 7 IR A A 25 48 i
equity interest in the acquiree is re- WEE Bz FHEEHN
measured to fair value at the acquisition & FoREHE=E
date; any gains or losses arising from such mESMIE S EE B
re-measurement are recognised in profit PIBRPIER
or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHRERE (&)
(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBAT(4E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 456KH (&)
(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries (0 HEMHEBAF
When the Group ceases to have control, PN B N2 =g
any retained interest in the entity is re- BN ER I
measured to its fair value at the date when IREBREZS W IR e 4|
control is lost, with the change in carrying EEHZAFEEFTT
amount recognised in profit or loss. The £ MEEEZ ZE8)
fair value is the initial carrying amount for R ER - LEZ
the purposes of subsequently accounting AEDEBEE AT~ &
for the retained interest as an associate, BRESPBEEZR
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, BEXZMs » NV 1EE
any amounts previously recognised in FIIEIRE(E » LA - %
other comprehensive income in respect of B E b 2 T Y A A HE
that entity are accounted for as if the REZERBM 2 EW
Group had directly disposed of the related SF BRBOAEER
assets or liabilities. This may mean that BEELERBEEESS
amounts previously recognised in other EZHRAADE - E08E
comprehensive income are reclassified to ERELEEMEE
profit or loss. WARNER & BEBE
MR ERER -
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 B B#RE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at RHTB A B 2 & B IR A
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct ERE AR - KA IER
attributable costs of investment. The results of BHEEEGKA - FB AR
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company MEERAQNRIEE K KLE
on the basis of dividend and receivable. WK BABE
Impairment testing of the investments in REB AR ZIRERERE
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends % (NIREREEHE A TR
from these investments if the dividend exceeds EHREBEEZ 2EBRA
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary EER SN B S HRKk 2
in the period the dividend is declared or if the KEZIREEBRBIRIKESE
carrying amount of the investment in the BEFR(BEBE ) RES
separate financial statements exceeds the BifsaRE R EME - BEY
carrying amount in the consolidated financial M B AT 2R EEL BE R
statements of the investee’s net assets including = o
goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of (losses)/profits of associates” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEeHBERES)
(continued)
2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 EEN\T (L)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and EEHEEBMAENTREEETRR
downstream transactions between the Group and its S IWHNEB M S REEDR
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial BEERAIEEEITEEF AR SA
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s TIRERBED o REIRBEIMEY
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are o BIER BB EE S E IR
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of ECEE  MEANTeE
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting BRFESEHNE  UEREEEH
policies of associates have been changed where FTEeah o s —3K ©
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in TERE LN TR IR B FTE A s Uk
associates are recognised in the consolidated income HMEBRGABREET -
statement.
2.4 Segment reporting 2.4 DIHE
Operating segments are reported in a manner ,ge__fﬁgg} B EHEEERKTER
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the HERIREE B — BN R
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating Lo HEl @,}gﬁ%gjﬁﬁgmgg
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating BEFHERBIEATECEER B
resources and assessing performance of the operating R DI BB AL R RIRE o
segments, has been identified as the board of directors
that makes strategic decisions.
2.5 Foreign currency translation 2.5  HNEEEE
(@)  Functional and presentation currency (a) IHBER 2#E
Items included in the financial statements of AREBSRERBTEWI K RE
each of the Group's entities are measured using YT B AR B RS &P
the currency of the primary economic EHXTE é&,;f‘_ﬁi&iﬁm £ L
environment in which the entity operates (the E([MEeEE ) - SEH%
“functional currency”). The consolidated MEABER2H - BERR
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong NEIRIEE R AEEFD Y IR
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s HiK o
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “general and administrative expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHRERE (&)
(continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.5 YMNEEH ()
(c)  Group companies (o HEELAE]

The results and financial position of all the I B & 5 R 1) IR &5 W N R Y

Group entities (none of which has the currency FAEEEEE(Eh8aRE

of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a BRI X)) R E A

functional currency different from the B AR AR SRR N TN AR E A

presentation currency are translated into the 5|0 B

presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet . BHERWEEAGE
presented are translated at the closing rate ARBEMEBIRZE
at the date of that balance sheet; EafxBHrnkTiE

ERE

. income and expenses for each income . FHEZE R AR
statement are translated at average ERREYHERKY
exchange rates (unless this average is not (BIEHFHEERIES
a reasonable approximation of the HEEXSHEERR
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on HEENAEYY T
the transaction dates, in which case WERT @ W iEER
income and expenses are translated at the SHENEXRKE)
rate on the dates of the transactions); and %

. all resulting exchange differences are . FTA I ELEMEH =
recognised in other comprehensive BRETREI AT
income. 2

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on W BN ERELENTEER

the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as NEBERABR BZ I ETE

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and HMEEMEaE  WikkmE
translated at the closing rate. Exchange RIBE o FRIELENER =58
differences arising are recognised in other REM 2B AR -
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEOHBEEES)

(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.6 W MSERHE(E)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying HEKAREAHEZIBEABAY R
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as R ER A A REmANER - B
appropriate, only when it is probable that future ZEB M ARRE R SEETER - 68
economic benefits associated with the item will flow BEEAENRREXERAEEBIE
to the Group and the cost of the item can be EGRER) - O EHREH/IEEE
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the WE FBIR - IEETHBRERE
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and EEANBHEBR AR GEBEE
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income XM e
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences DEAMEMEZHETHBE 1

amortisation from the time when the land interest FEZS A EH IR T AR aa ey o

becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation DHEAMEMRENHEE L #hr 5

on leasehold land classified as finance lease and EETEEMTERBIATOEE

depreciation on other assets is calculated using the AR ERERAIZEGEEDEE
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their FspBEE -

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

— Leasehold land Shorter of remaining — HEARE FHHESHE
classified as lease term or useful HEM Al A
finance lease life AE T FHREDE

—  Buildings 20 to 50 years — = 20&E504F

— Leasehold 2 to 10 years — THEEFHE 2F10F
improvements (over the period of leases) (LT FEH)

—  Machinery 8 to 10 years — MR 8E10F

—  Furniture and — KERRHE 4FE10F
equipment 4 1o 10 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years — H 4T 10E

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are BEMNRGEENMAIFERTHES

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of ERE BEIARETHRE  REBRE

each reporting period. =R

An asset’s carrying amount is written down EEEMRAESNEMGS T WKE

immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s EE - HIREEAFHURZ TR

carrying amount is greater than its estimated 458 (B15F2.9) o

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by W B S TR P B ek B IR A L

comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and B WRGEAEREETRAR

are recognised within “other income and net gains” in W25 %%E | g o

the consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that
are being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded
in the consolidated income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “other income and net gains”.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Company'’s
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured on
initial recognition at cost. Mining right acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Mining right has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining right over its estimated useful life of 30
years.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(©

(d)

(e)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated at
cost less impairment losses. Exploration and
evaluation assets include topographical and
geological surveys, exploratory drilling, sampling
and trenching and activities in relation to
commercial and technical feasibility studies, and
expenditure incurred to secure further
mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure
incurred prior to acquiring legal rights to explore
an area is written off as incurred. When it can
be reasonably ascertained that a mining property
is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs are transferred to mining
right and are amortised based on the accounting
policy as stated in “Mining right” above. If any
project is abandoned during the evaluation
stage, the total expenditure thereon will be
written off.

Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life (for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use) are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-
sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a
sale is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) (or
disposal groups), are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise “bills and accounts
receivable”, “deposits and other
receivables”, “due from associates”, “due
from a related company” and “cash and
bank balances” in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1Classification (continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
“other income and net gains”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of “other income and net gains” when
the Group’'s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

2.13

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss) is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of accounts
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated and
entity balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(©

Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEeHBERES)
(continued)
2.22 Employee benefits 2.22 EEEF
(@)  Pension obligations (a) RUSEM
The Group operates a number of defined EELELZIEATHIENK
contribution plans, the assets of which are HE o HBCEE—MEBEB
generally held in separate trustee — VEBEHSES -
administered funds.
Defined contribution plans HEMEETE
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan 5 ELﬂXE‘I’%J —IBANEE
under which the Group pays fixed contributions m—REEBFES NHEZy
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or RRE Sl B E S EE
constructive obligations to pay further ERMEEMRAER ITHE
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient HEHRUABBNRES
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating @ - ANEBEFEET K
to employee service in the current and prior HEEBE— ST -
periods.
The Group pays contributions to publicly or REE AR H M - A4k
privately administered pension insurance plans BFEE TR ABRILAE
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. 1B R IKRR ST 23k o A
The Group has no further payment obligations EEEL S HE - BEE—
once the contributions have been paid. The FRRET - EREENR
contributions are recognised as employee B2 AEEEMNEY - BN
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid IR R IR £ R ek nl E
contributions are recognised as an asset to the KRN RTEREEE -
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
(b)  Bonus plans (b) ozt

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12 HEAEBRAREECIEH R
months after the end of each reporting period BmMEARABRAENEE®
are recognised when the Group has a present EE MEESEETEMG
legal or constructive obligation as a result of B BI¥IESRS B HRRE
services rendered by employees and a reliable H+—EARNENY B
estimate of the obligation can be made. B R AR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

2.23 Share-based payments

(@

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

(@)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

(b)  Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated
as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an increase
to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EZeNREEEE)
(continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition 2.25 =R

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the W sim e ek R By A FEEET
consideration received or receivable, and represents 2 UWUARENE R EKS
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of MBI MN - EEREEHRS
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group R BN EEAL A EHEIE T
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can KRR ZEA AT . B
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future BANTAEBR R £ ITTIESE
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when B REFESERNZ - AEEIR
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s EEHAE  WEBERPLEAMN XS
activities, as described below. The Group bases its R RIBL 2 B ER G ET -
estimates of return on historical results, taking into

consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods is () e —EEkETEHEEEY
recognised when the significant risks and EARBEEEREBERE
rewards of ownership of the goods have been RFRERR ©
transferred to customers.

(b)  Rental income — rental income is recognised on (b) FEWA — HEWAIZTELY
a straight line basis over the term of the lease. FHILAEGRE®ER

(c)  Service income — service income is recognised (0  RBWA — BEWKALRE
in the accounting periods in which the services Rt HREDR -
are rendered.

2.26 Interest income 2.26 FEWA
Interest income is recognised using the effective F B AR ERF ESEEDT o 14
interest method. When a loan and receivable is ERRERSHIERNE  AEES
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to WIS TEER S A W E =EE - B st
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future HWAKEERERZTIAZRER
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest FIRBLIN(E - WHEEBAIRETEY
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the AT AWA - BREEZNE
discount as interest income. Interest income on Wz F B ARRE T RE
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the 2o
original effective interest rate.
2.27 Dividend income 227 BEWA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to % B U AR U B SR IE 2 R R R T B
receive payment is established. TR o
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.28 Leases

2.29

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.30 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group.

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

(@)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from sales
or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 88% (2011:
90%) of the Group’'s turnover are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst approximately
15% (2011: 13%) of costs are
denominated in the units’ functional
currency. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and
investments in foreign operations by
funding its local operations and
investments through cash flow generated
from business transactions locally. The
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and forward exchange
contracts are used for hedging purposes
when required.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") is pegged to the United
States dollar (“US$"), the Group's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is
minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

(i)

3 MBEREERE)

3.1 UBEBEEE)
Market risk (continued) (a) mERERE (&)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) ()  HNER (4Z)
The following table demonstrates the T2 EMEHT &
sensitivity at the end of the reporting HREFTERE  ~EE
period to a reasonably possible change in CHBRIERIBEE(
Chinese Renminbi (“"RMB") exchange rate, EEEERABEATYE
with all other variables held constant, of BE) RESHNREA
the Group’s loss after income tax (due to HARW A RKERDGS
changes in the fair value of monetary B ERE 2%
assets and liabilities) and the Group’s (ZZB——4F : 10%) 1
equity. 2% (2011: 10%) increase/decrease TR THREEERE
represents management’s assessment of a MEZE NERS BE
reasonably possible change in RMB CHIRYWAER Y E S
exchange rate which have the most impact K2z ANREETERA] 4
on the Group over the period until the end A BEEEL 25T
of the next reporting period. e
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after  (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRATISH
AR¥E iR, REEEm
EFA(FH) CRLA) (R2)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
2012
If HK$ weakens  fiB i AR
against RMB LEE5] 2 3,263 (3,263)
If HK$ strengthens {8 T 5 A R
against RMB g 2) (3,263) 3,263
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
RMB income tax equity
BRPT1SHLI&
AR ERgm =B
ERHCREE) Rt ) CRid)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB T
2011
If HK$ weakens WETHARE
against RMB LD 10 7,702 (7,702)
If HKS strengthens i 7C 5 AR
against RMB BHog (10) (7,702) 7,702
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease as a
result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity
investments (Note 14) and other financial
assets (Note 15) as at 31 December 2011
and 2012. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. The Group's
listed investments listed in Hong Kong and
overseas are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in the
fair values of the equity investments with
all other variables held constant and after
any impact on income tax, based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

3 MBEREERE)

3.1

Increase/
(Decrease) in

carrying amount

2012

5% increase in RAEE LFH
equity price 5%

5% decrease in MRAERE T %
equity price 5%

of equity
investments
BRAIRE
REEE M
(R2)
HK$'000
BETT

35

(35)

BEmEE(E)

(a)

g (&)

(ii)

HK$’000
BT

(EREYE

BEEERRAKRTEIE
FUKEREREHEE
FHERRAEBELSANT
ETRzRERE RZF
—— kT —=F
+=—A=+—8 &%
B REEERR
KBV AEERNEE
(FIsE14) RECHEE
E (P 5E15) 2 @ B A%
KIEE - AXEERTE
BREERAEBSME
HEREERRE - MDA
HIgEHAE - AEB 2
EHEREDNREBERE
SNET - EHEBER
Frspmim B8 EE o

TEREVIENHRE B E
ARG E ZIRAIE -
EMBETEHRET
o ST RERPTER
TEBERARERNTE
#hn,m A 5% 2 BURk
J‘go

Increase/
(Decrease) in
loss after
income tax
MRETEH %
EEEm/

Increase/
(Decrease) in
equity

B
8,
OR2)
HK$'000
BT

(D)

(31) 31

31 (31
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(@)
(i)

(iii)

Financial risk factors (continued)

3 RBXERERE)

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. During 2011 and
2012, the Group’s borrowings at variable
rate were denominated in US$, RMB and
HK$.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

3.1 BEERBREZE(E)
Market risk (continued) (a) HEEE (&)
Price risk (continued) (i) (BREEE)
Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/
carrying amount (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity loss after (Decrease) in
investments income tax equity
fe A% E BRETSRE g
IREE BEgn,/ #h,/
#m/ () CR) CR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
2011
5% increase in PR A RS EF
equity price 5% 3,918 (3,865) 3,865
5% decrease in PN NS
equity price 5% (3,918) 3,865 (3,865)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk iy RERERAFEFZE

[\ B2

2DV LT3 AN
BEE  #AKENK
AMZEREREEN
ETRWIGH RIKE

B/ 48R
mE

AEBRFXRERKA
REIER - REFHH X
BITHERS REE
XMREREN KRR
BEEF R EITHER
SARERAR R FER
KEfg - —T——FR
T F AEEE
BRENERBET
AR

HRNEEERSARE
RYAREELTEKX
BN SR B3 SR AR
TRERAFENEE

LA
i

o o
2N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)  Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss after
income tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s

equity.

2012

uss
RMB
HK$

uss
RMB
HK$

2011

uss$
RMB
HK$

uss
RMB
HK$

E3
ARH
BT

E
ARH

N
BT

e
N
BT

3 MBEREERE)
3.1 UBEREE(E)
@ mEREE (&)

(i) BE2RERRAFENE
Rk (&)

TREVNNEFMBEEE
FiigfirBE(ERY
B EREREE
Z)RAEEERYA
EE%IJZ%%@JZ@E .

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BRETEBIE B
FIREH EEsm #m,/
i,/ (h) (B2) (R2)
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BET T BT
100 1,772 (1,772)
100 1,133 (1,133)
100 1,025 (1,025)
(100) (1,772) 1,772
(100) (1,133) 1,133
(100) (1,025) 1,025
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
basis points income tax equity
BRETSHE iy
FREE, [=3i=b:i1 ) 1
#h,/ Crd) CA) CR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
100 2,620 (2,620)
100 1,105 (1,105)
100 947 (947)
(100) (2,620) 2,620
(100) (1,105) 1,105
(100) (947) 947
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(®)

©

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates, due from a
related company and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in Note 36(d) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

3

MBERER(E)
3.1 UBEREE(E)

(b)

(©

=ERR

AEBERRIEPBHEE
Z AW E SR - AR EF
BRSHHTHEERRED
B W EAHTEHERE
ZEERBREME - I K
SERBERRWEHRE
S T AN £ B KR IR
R

RERARBEECHBKEE
(EhERRE LB EHE
W BERRRE BER
AR RETEER) WEE
Rk NEBRSTEOR
EEXNEERR  LRAE
MZETAMNREE -

S B R SR 651 5 AR
HEEER - HEREAH

&R 55 36(d) I EE -

AL B EWIRIBEERR
Z2HEvELEE  BREA
BIFS SRR FE 16 55 -

RBET AR

rEBEERAEADESR
REEAESRKRAEMLE AE
RASBEZEH kK
HETHMEMABHESH K
MERRY —EaEZRE
EoRERERER - ~&H
RAGERBARERRS
moMBEERABZFEH
Y R#gBxRHEERE
BE - EERDESRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 Bi%EBEEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BiISEREE(E)
(©)  Liquidity risk (continued) (© REELER (&)

BRIRC LA AR Z 14 50
AE AEENMARRRE
REIRMBREZFHOT

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Carrying Total More than
amountasper  contractual  On demand 1year
consolidated  undiscounted or within  but less than Over
balance sheet  cash flows 1 year 5 years 5 years
&&e B
EESfERz  MANBERZ EERS —E0E fik:3
REE ReRELAE -FhfEE  EREER Ik
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
2012
Group £8
Borrowings BX 1,001,091 1,015,895 763,587 164,000 88,308
Due to related companies R EE A 7708 23,315 23,315 23,315 - -
Bills and accounts payable E{fZERE[I1RE 239,617 239,617 239,617 - -
Other payables and HuEMRE
accruals REER 143,428 143,428 143,428 - -
Guarantees for general ~ ABEARHTRE
banking facilities REFRE
and loan facilities itz BR
granted to associates - 22,420 22,420 - -
Guarantees given to REBYEREE
hanks for mortgage REERMEBT
facilities granted to EHZER
the buyers of the
Group's properties - 9% % - -
1,407,451 1,444,769 1,192,461 164,000 88,308
Company AL
Due to subsidiaries THBARRE 27,208 27,208 27,208 - -
Other payables and HeEMARE
accruals REHER 2,006 2,046 2,046 - -
29,254 29,254 29,254 - -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBEBREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BMEERBREZ(E)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (© REELEE(E)
Carrying Total More than
amountas per  contractual  On demand 1 year
consolidated  undiscounted or within  but less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
&iEa Bi#
BERBER MARHZ FEER —FLE
REE ReRBEE —FNEE ERIER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
2011
Group L]
Borrowings B 1,145,943 1,167,252 938,946 228,306
Due to related companies REENTIZIA 24,079 24,079 24,079 -
Bills and accounts payable  ENZIE K ENIRIE 228,595 228,595 228,595 -
Other payables and accruals ~ H T fERIRIE M B+ & 126,128 126,128 126,128 -
Guarantees for general REERART
banking facilities granted BMEEHZER
to an associate - 11,260 11,260 -
Guarantees given to REEMEREELH
banks for mortgage BERmmRITIEL 2
facilities granted to 2R
the buyers of the
Group's properties - 94 94 -
1,524,745 1,557,408 1,329,102 228,306
Company NS
Due to subsidiaries RYTBARFIE 882 882 882 -
Other payables and accruals ~ HEE & 1RIE
REER 2,294 2,294 2,294 -
3,176 3,176 3,176 -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (including share
capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling
interests as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
and other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2011, was to maintain a debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2012
were as follows:

Total borrowings B

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 35(b)) (B &£ 35(
Net debt BERHE
Total equity g
Adjusted capital AR AR

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

3

MEEREE (&)

3.2

o RBe LR EHEY
)

BRI IR A L R

ESERE

AEBEERESZ BRRAREARSE
ERBRE 2N ARBRRTER
B3 REECEDRA AHRF
o REFEEESERUREE
DN

PR XRABENGEE - AEEL
SREARFRNEEZEHE - [
BRBEESHBEITHRD

AEBZEHHEHBRA L RE
BRARAN o L L RIZEHFERBR DA
HEBRAGHE - BEFRIZEER
(BREGEEERBERMIIRZR
BEERBEFORRENREE
BYEHRTE - KEBRABEM
BEEamfy (BREEEEARBRRK
FOREOBA - (R - RE BT R
FEPRRCHE ) BB X B IR AR
RHOECER -

RZTE—ZF  AEEZXRB A
FEBESCHEBERAL RER
90% @ T ——FFR - RZF
——ER-E——F+-A=+—
A2 BB EAERANL DT ¢

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

1,001,091 1,145,943
(199,074) (190,934)
802,017 955,009
1,742,977 2,266,593
1,802,699 2,326,633

44% 41%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HiXEREREE)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMAER

The table below analyses financial instruments carried TRIEGEEEDTARFEFE

at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels TEBMTEARE - RELVTEERMT

have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o REdExaBEETRTE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). FHRB(REHE) (F—

&) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within o BE—RFABIENREBIN -
level 1 that are observable for the asset or EESGEN T EE(AE
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or ) ok i (BB AR LASNE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). HYBERmEG ABE—

&) -

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o WIER B AT B R TR B T
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BEEMNEES A EHAEH
inputs) (level 3). TR AE) (F=4) °

The following table presents the Group’s assets that THREBVIAREBR —_ZE——F+—

are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012. A=1+—BUAEEAENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t 1} E=R wxEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE BETT BT BETx BETx

Financial assets at fair RAFEZEBER

value through profit SR BT IS EE

or loss

— listed equity securities — EHRAH S 700 - - 700
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BERAKREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 ATFEMEE(E)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2011.

FREIAREN -F——F+=
A=+—RLAFEHENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EF— B E=R FEES)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Assets BE BT BETr BETFr BET
Financial assets at fair value 2 AF(EiFBIER
through profit or loss PIRM S & E

— listed equity securities — FHRAES 6,360 - - 6,360

Contingent consideration ¥BAHELEN
for a business combination  ZAIL(E - - 71,998 71,998
6,360 - 71,998 78,358

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

HEABRMSEECERMTAZAYF
BNEERE AHPR TS HRER
B HHREARTZRREBERS
mE - EHEE - BEAEXSE
- RERGHEEBXEETRETE
% EZERERRIZATFRAEE
BOEBERTHPHERERS - Alxh
BRRER - AKBE AR B E
EFAMZHRE/RITERE - %F
TABE MR-

VIERBEMSESE ST A
(MBI ZHTETR) 2 R FER
REERMTETE - ZFHERM A
RAREERT I ESNAIBET
SEE - B BRI HKE
fRE&IE - MIZ A FEFE—IEL
ENEERBABSABRE
B AZATABFE -

i — {2k % (E E K8 A BN IER I
AEEmEREEE  AZATA
BE=H-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 ATFEMEE(E)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy
classifications.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2011
and 2012.

AR T AFEREENREMR
BERTEE

e HUOUTARAMESHRELR
HERE °

o HyY R GlmirRREe R
ENN AUEBTH&%ER
TEZRFE-

RAFEERDRZE-RRE
M2 BB EERNGVEEERD -

——FE+ A=+ —HILEEYS
=R/ T EEE o

Contingent consideration at fair value RQFEHEZHARE

FUER

Opening balance

Losses recognised in profit or loss

Settlement HE
Closing balance FREH

Total losses for the year including FNEIE
in profit or loss Haza

There is no significant transfers of financial assets into
or out of level 3.

Changes in fair value of contingent consideration are
recognised in “fair value losses on other financial
assets” in the consolidated income statement.

RIBmRER 2 B8

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T

71,998 349,707
(686) (277,709)
(71,312) -
- 71,998

(686) (277,709)

VEEBAVBEELSE ZRBAX
B e

IRREBE A FHEEPNGFEER
TN EEWBEENAFEER]
FEER ©
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on fair value less
costs to sell (2011: value-in-use calculations).
These calculations require the use of estimates
(see Note 9).

An impairment charge of approximately
HK$394,030,000 (2011: Nil) arose in the mineral
resources CGU during the course of the 2012
year.

(b)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations, taking into account
latest market information and past experience.
These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

4

BARE ATk E & M

HEMAE & WA URBEE
RBRMETRRETHE  BHREAR
BN T REREENERREFHTEAR -

4.1

BRI EERERR

AEEEARRIEL EEMERR - P
SHEERENEER  RIHE
HERGERMER - RAKSEHRT
EFBFENEEMRENREE
TR E AR EE MR w0
o

@ BERHEGE

ANEBRBEAK 2.8 5T
HRSFHRHERTEER
BEETAR - BEELEN
ZAlKE £ BEREATFE
BEERKABEE(ZE——
FRFEABERER) A
Bt EBELHE (R
9) e

RZE——F EBEERH
CELBEMFBENBIE
394,030,000L( = F ——4F :
) o

b) YF- HERRBEHNHE
R T E AR 1

EBEEMHHRABANER
R R 1B A] BE DR W o By
ARYE - MR RRENE
G b Ko b (8 AR R TR
BRe - £ZEOHAHRK
W HELH R T ERE
# AT Wi [ & R IR AR (B (E
AAEMETE ° WHEE R

EBERENAHEREE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

©

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of properties is
normally the current prices in an active market
for comparable properties. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences, by reference to independent
valuations; and

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices.

If information on current or recent prices of
investment properties is not available, the fair
values of investment properties are determined
using discounted cash flow valuation techniques.
The Group uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions underlying
management’s estimation of fair value are those
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals;
expected future market rentals; void periods;
maintenance requirements; and appropriate
discount rates. These valuations are regularly
compared to actual market yield data, and
actual transactions by the Group and those
reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are
determined on the basis of current market
rentals for similar properties in the same location
and condition.

4,

RESThE R (&)

4.1

RS EEREBRR(E)

(©

KEYFELFENGEE

MENATENRIEBEE
B 5 7 B AL ) W AT B
45 0 B (4R - BRIk
HER - AEEE—FF|A
12 ¢ 2 18 5 50 0 B PO
A% 5 - 1R HIBT S
AEBEEEESHENE
Kl

)y WBIHEERZ2E
TRME - AR E
WY EREEENIZNE
BER(EERRTE
HEFEEAL) &
AR BRI Z R
54

() BB R ERTER
TR I R A © S
AR IR IR % S (A
A% 5 B SR AT
REETED -

G0 oK BEERAS & B 53T HR(E AR
MER  REMENRFE
FMAMRRESHEEXMNE
e AKENANRERER
RIFSERE A ARERFH
mSEREE

EEEHAFEBENTIE
REFPE: AHEEHOI
B BHIAKRMSEEE: B8
ME HERTE MEEN
BER R - WERETHEE
BR AT 5 U st SR A AN &
BB R 55 ®EE
HELE -

BHRRM S HEERRIBE
W) SE7E R — B A0 AR 0 B9

ERMSETET °
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(d)  Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but
also to other assets used in the production or supply
process.

4,

RESThE R (&)

4.1

RIS EERBRR(E)

(d) FiEHRAELREH

AEBEFEETEREEH
MR  EEEREARBS
BR N T A8 B AR R A B
B BEFLEANHE - &£
—REBBER  FHFEXR
GBS kRS
BTHRTEEN - MFH
SHNRBBHRRER
EHENERTE WEEHR
HEEFLEEFETHED
PSR AEIE PSR4

EEHEER/ARRARTRE
ERBAFN  SERHERR
BMBEURAE  BE%E
FEERTIBNELMER
BESHRIER - £RHEBR
BRRNRGE  ZEZ2€
EBRREENHEALER
ARSI E EMTF A8

X7
e

42 FERAASEESH BRI E

KEYRBAZTRAYEND 5

AEBEET - BMERENEER
REYE - EAEHFIEE - A&
BeEERMEMELNERESRE
EEREANTHEBHENETE
EffTE XTERMEMELN
Reng TERAREZWE - TF
KERREESHERIENETE
= o

20126 BEHERERAR

103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4. B@Re{ZERYE &)
(continued)
4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group's 4) FERAAEESIHHRENBEREYE
accounting policies (continued) (&)
Distinction between investment properties and owner- b= //EF =N 0]
occupied properties (continued) (&)
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to b W 22 H Fh ) — R4 2 B DA BEER
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another HEeHEABAREERAEMES
portion that is held for use in the production or supply M) TR — 2 Bl A VEA FE o
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If FEE D REHIEAITTHEBR - In
these portions can be sold separately (or leased out =N S B E (iR E
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts EBYER) AEFBSEHZED
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be DIBIERME o WNEZZE IR AN A] LSS
sold separately, the property is accounted for as SHE ZYEREAHAEARD
investment property only if an insignificant portion is HREEESHES R RS KIE
held for use in the production or supply of goods or THREMEBRIZIKRAKRED
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is 2o AETHBREEZEEETKX
applied in determining whether ancillary services are B EIBYENTESIERINEME
so significant that a property does not qualify as B BYERHIE - REBEIELH
investment property. The Group considers each BB EEYE -
property separately in making its judgement.
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 2EER
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as T ERBASEO R T ARAARES
the board of directors of the Company. The directors review B EBENEARAEFBNRNITRSE - LA
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess (HEEMPELER - SIBIFIEIRIEE
performance and allocate resources. Management has LSRR T4 & D Ef o
determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The directors assess the performance of the operating EERBAEEREHIAEN (B
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before income 1B) IREL (LR & D ER 45 - B HRE
tax for the year. The information provided to the directors is MERERGEHEREERIEN S
measured in a manner consistent with that in the RE— -
consolidated financial statements.
The Group is organised into four major operating units: (i) ANEBEHMNEFELBEERAR ()i
steel trading; (i) steel processing; (iii) mineral resources; (iv) MBS )HENT : GNVEEZR : (v)
commercial property; and (v) other segment comprises, HEEME: NVWHESITESRIES
principally, management services business. FEEER
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Turnover recognised during the year is as follows:

Sale of goods HE
Rental income e WA
Service income BRA WA

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012

5 2WMERE)

RERHRERBMOT

2012 2011
HK$"000 HK$'000
BT T BT

4,844,364 7,570,889

50,182 35,306
21,778 16,959
4,916,324 7,623,154

BE-_Z——HF+-_A=+—HILFE

are as follows: M EBEENT -
Steel Steel Mineral - Commercial
trading processing  resources  property Others Unallocated Group
WEER AENT BELR HERHE -4 FAE %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETn  B%Tn BT BETn B%Tx
Total segment sales DUEEET 4,535,111 313,415 - 50,182 23,865 - 4922573
Inter-segment sales DEREIHE (4,162) - - - (2,087) - (6,249)
Sales to external customers HEFNIEF 4,530,949 313,415 - 50,182 21,778 - 4,916,324
Operating (loss)/profit A THIERMN
before below items e (Ei8) /B (38,301) (1299 (21916) 33,120 6012 (30291)  (58,670)
Fair value gains on RENZE
investment properties NEEYE - - - 49,060 - - 49,060
Fair value (losses)/gains BATERRER
on financial assets at 500817
fair value through EE/NTE
profit or loss (B8)/ & (239) - - - - 3,102 2863
Share option expenses BREL N - - - - - (266) (266)
Operating (loss)/profit B () B (38,540) (7,294) (21,916) 82,180 6,012 (27,455) (7,013)
Finance costs HERA (27,607) (2,655) (12,080) (9,412 - (1,553) (53,307)
Fair value losses on AVHBEAE
other financial assets AFEEE - - - - - (686) (686)
Impairment losses on goodwil BERE - - (394,030 - - - (394,030)
Impairment losses on an associate  BE4 A FlEE - - - - - (2,237) (2,237)
Share of losses of associates it NG |2 - - - - - (521) (521)
Segment results PHEE (66,147) (9.949)  (428,026) 72,768 6,012 (32,452)  (457,794)
Income tax expense FfEfE (14)
Loss for the year FEER (457,808)
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBER(E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 HEr-———F+-_A=+—HILEE
are as follows: KD RBEEFEAT -
Steel Steel Mineral  Commercial
trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
MBS  MENT  BEER BERME s AR £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
BBt AETr ST AT AETr %t A%TR
Total segment sales NHHERE 7174486 344,133 57,059 35,306 17,738 - 76872
Inter-segment sales PHRHE (4,789) - - - (779) - (5,568)
Sales to external customers HETIHEEE 7,169,697 344,133 57,059 35,306 16,959 - 7623154
Operating profitAloss) FerTHEBE
before below items BERA/(BR) 55,377 (5,703) (9,09) 28,824 2708 (37341 34773
Fair value gains on RENR
investment properties INZE - - - 38,611 - - 38,611
Fair value losses BOTERR
on financial assets at Epillio
fair value through HBEEL
profit or loss AFEER (3332) - - - - (5,701) (9,033)
Share option expenses BRES - - - - - (3,739) (3,739)
Operating profit/(loss) merd/ (58) 52,045 (5,703) (9,092) 67,435 2708 (46781) 60612
Finance costs HERE (56,014) (2,692) (1,509) (9315) - (438  (69968)
Fair value losses on HEvBKEE
other financial assets LTEEE - - - - - Qm09)  (277,709)
Share of profits of associates FriEBEARRT - - - - - 4,668 4,668
Segment results PEEE (3,969) (8,395) (10,601) 58,120 2,708 (320,260) (282,397
Income tax expense R (9,807)
Loss for the year FERE (292,204)
Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with SEEHEREBRISG 2ERBNIZRE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third RETE=F2MHERMEE °
parties at the prevailing market prices.
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWERE)
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each DE BRSSO BEI R (E
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate B)MUTABERADR %S - 24
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of (losses)/profits BREEEHS EBLEAFE
of associates, impairment losses on an associate, fair value B) /BF  BMEATIRE ETHEE
losses on other financial assets and share option expenses. EATEBEENERES L -
Other segment information HEeHIpEsR
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+—-_A=+—BHHIE
and depreciation, amortisation and additions to non-current EMBEULRHBHEZE-_ZET——F+_H
assets for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows: =t+—HIFEEOTE  #iENRIERIE
RBEEMT
Steel Steel Mineral Commercial
trading  processing  resources  property Others Unallocated Group
WEES EENI  BEER BERUE e X B &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BRI ARTn  E¥Tr  ERTn  E%Tn  B%TR BETR
Assets BE 1,357,471 185,881 623,451 937,715 5,489 294,682 3,404,689
Liabilities BE 639,077 138,420 287,881 225,613 26,672 344,049 1,661,712
Depreciation e 1,910 4,357 1,283 631 1,626 1,563 11,330
Amortisation B - 156 7,724 40 - - 7,920
Additions to ERERDEE
non-current assets 14 183 202 8,663 23 - 9,812
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SIER(E)
Other segment information (continued) HeoEr (&)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-_F=4+—HHDIE
and depreciation, amortisation and additions to non-current EMBEUALRHEZE-_ZE—F+=H
assets for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows: =t+—HIFEEMOITE  #ENRIERIE
MBEEMT
Steel Steel Mineral  Commercial
trading  processing resources property Others  Unallocated Group
#EZ5 WENI  BEER BEEME e AR &
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AgTr  A¥Tr  B%Tr  B%Tn BT BT B%Tx
Assets EE 1,571,717 260,595 1,001,839 877,660 5,247 327,734 4,044,792
Liabilities B 773,198 182,454 332,499 178,787 14,457 296,804 1,778,199
Depreciation e 1,906 4,647 1,266 424 1,443 1,581 11,267
Amortisation B - 156 7,153 39 - - 7,348
Additions to ERERBEE
non-current assets 2,365 1,214 13,466 24,687 3,438 2 45172
Segment assets exclude club debentures, financial assets at SEWEEWIPIESEGES - AT HE
fair value through profit or loss, other financial assets, FREBSVIENMEEE  HEBKE
deferred income tax assets, investments in associates, E- BIEMEHREE BEARIEE -
income tax refundable, assets held for sale and other ARERER FHEEAERETRD
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets RRANFIRTEEE HatEElE
are managed on a group basis. BEHAEE o
Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities, SEBEYIABIFEEREMEHRGE &
income tax payable, corporate borrowings and other B CEEXRETRADERERD
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these FIRt¥aE AELaEUEEFR
liabilities are managed on a group basis. I o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group's business segments operate in four main

geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis.

Sales (by location of customers)
— Asia (other than Mainland China

and Hong Kong) REE)
— Mainland China —
— Europe — B
— Hong Kong — &
— Others —HT

Non-current assets IEREEE
— Mainland China —rh
— Hong Kong —BE
— Europe — B
— Other —Hy

The non-current assets information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes club debentures, deferred
income tax assets and investments in associates.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group did not
have any single significant customer with the transaction
value above 10% of the external sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had sales
of approximately HK$958,390,000 to a single customer of
the steel trading segment, representing approximately 13%
of the external sales.

HE (RETHES )
— M (T ERES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

DEER(E)

EER

AREEW RS 8B O EE L
o BAMFRBRUEHIAEE -

2012 2011
HK$"000 HK$'000
BETT BT

1,492,432 1,319,915
1,237,841 3,567,372
990,354 2,055,235
596,012 377,540
599,685 303,092
4,916,324 7,623,154
1,483,688 1,823,547
70,550 72,990
883 959

84 84
1,555,205 1,897,580

NEFRBEEREEMTEHRE D
BrEmeREs BEEMBREER

B nRIRE -

BE-F——&5+-A=+—AILEE
)8 8 —EAE S 0 HE EAKE 2
SMBAHE 10% A L -

HE—_Z2——F+-_A=+—HILt+F
E-MEESoNEE—BFNHEE
#7575 958,390,000 7T * {EAEE 2 Hh
EEE413% -
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6  LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6 MHELMRIHmERE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights REBEERE T K - AR RS
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net BENLERESR  HERBEFESNT
book amounts are analysed as follows: wm
Group
&8
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EEBUIMNEE -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +ER+EFEHNEE 10,722 11,046
Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate carrying N-_E——F+-_A=+—8 #HEL
amount of approximately HK$5,983,000 as at 31 December Rt E RREAKRETDED DK
2012 (2011: HK$6,171,000) were pledged to secure against 5,983,000t( — & — — F: B &
certain of the Group's bank borrowings (see Note 23). 6,171,00070) B I h EE B ITERIE
IR (R MIRE23) »
Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights during HE LR T ERERFANNEZHN
the year is as follows: T
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T M T I
At 1 January n—A—H 11,046 11,163
Exchange differences fE 5 =%8 44 250
Amortisation of prepaid operating BN EERE
lease payments TRIEEE Y (368) (367)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 10,722 11,046
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7

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 January 2011

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2011

Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

+t-A=1-B
58
A FE
EAZE

5

1

e

&

BREREE

RIE——F

7 W BBERRE
Leasehold
landin
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Funiture
long-term improve- and Motor  Construction
finance lease Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
RERRE HERT A
HEHS DN gF kg e ey B ERIE %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ATr  BETn  BETR BT BT BMTr BEfn ATR
82,58 66,544 9,283 80,689 13524 11,661 294,964 559,247
(21,518) (29,443) (6,326) (64,745) (10.272) (8,245) - (140549
61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 325 3416 294,964 418698
61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 325 3416 294,964 418,698
- 512 19 267 67 105 12,669 13,639
- - 1,762 260 2,537 3718 11,291 19,568
. - - - (452) - - (452)
- - - (283) (29) - - (575)
(1,244) (2,229 (1,532) (3498) (1223) (1,545) - (11,267)
59,820 35,388 3,06 12,690 3,889 5,694 318924 439,611
82,58 67,223 11213 69,370 12,83 13,921 318924 576,065
(22,762) (31,835) (8,007) (56,680) (8943) (8227) - (136454)
59,820 35,388 3,06 12,690 3,889 5,694 318924 439,611

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 W BWEERNE(E)
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Furniture
long-term improve- and Motor Construction
finance lease  Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
REARS HEET P
HERELH 5 £ B e Ef  EEIE fag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AUt AMTn Mt AMTn AMTn B¥Tn B¥TRn BT
Year ended HE-E--F
31 December 2012 TZA=1t-H
5B
Opening net book amount 3R F(E 59,820 35,388 3,206 12,690 3,889 5,694 318,924 439,611
Exchange differences EiEE - 86 4 Ly i 19 1802 1974
Additions R - - - - 991 145 5 1,381
Disposals i - - - - (63) (183) - (246)
Depreciation charge nE (1,243) (2,235) (1,555) (3,236) (1,538) (1,523) - (11,330)
Closing net book amount ~ ERRIREF(E 58,577 33,239 1,655 9,49 3,300 4,152 32097 431,390
At 31 December 2012 RZE-=
t-A=1-B
Cost A 82,582 67,345 11,250 69,437 12393 13,008 32097 576,986
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE (24,005) (34,106) (9,595) (59,941) (9,093) (8,856) - (145,59)
Net book amount FEEE 58,577 33,239 1,655 9,49 3,300 4152 320,97 431,390
Depreciation expense of approximately HK$4,384,000 WESB AR LB 43840000 (==
(2011: HK$4,722,000) has been charged in cost of sales, ——4F 8 4,722,00070) 5 A SN E R
HK$1,911,000 (2011: HK$1,907,000) in selling and AR SE#E1911,0000 (= ——F
distribution expenses and HK$5,035,000 (2011: 1 907,0007) S ASHE R DS ER
HK$4,638,000) in general and administrative expenses. 7S #5,035,000 0 ( — & ——4F : B
4,638,000 7T) Bt A—M RITHER -
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has RNz -—=——F+-_pF=+—8%#
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to approximately N NEBABREENBENLIEERK
HK$8,500,000 on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were NH B8 500,000 7T © S {E B AL A
capitalised at the weighted average rate of its general H—MER T NEFEHEFERL11% B
borrowings of 4.11%. 1 o
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

At 31 December 2012, leasehold land in Hong Kong under
long-term finance lease and buildings with carrying amount
of approximately HK$58,577,000 (2011: HK$59,820,000)
and HK$30,165,000 (2011: HK$32,119,000), respectively,
were pledged to secure against certain of the Group’s bank

borrowings (see Note 23).

Motor vehicles and machinery include the following
amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance leases:

Cost — capitalised finance leases
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January

Additions

Fair value gains (included in “other
income and net gains”) (Note 27)

Exchange differences

Transfers

At 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

ME - MRRREE)

R-ZE——F+-A=1+—H NEHB
RHREEE L MEFIREES 5D
¥ 58,577,000 L (=T ——4F : B
59,820,000 7T ) & % # 30,165,000 7T ( —
T——4 : B#32,119,0007T) B AEBHD

SERITEREEA (RHFE23) -

SEESMEMEAM T MWER MR

BIETMEEE -
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
KA -EARNcEERE 3,070 6,081
2T E (1,389) (1,976)
bR EFE 1,681 4,105
8 WEWXE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
w—A—H 819,655 723,988
IR 8,474 23,921
NEERE(BEETEBRA
Rz 8 (MWit27) 49,060 38,611
PE X Z=%R 6,331 32,683
(1474 - 452
Rt+t-—A=+—H 883,520 819,655
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 ?Qﬁ%%(@t)
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment BEREYENESPEIANSEE
properties
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB T
Rental income HEEUA 50,182 35,306
Direct operating expenses from property ~ E4FEWANE 2
that generated rental income HEEZENAR (6,380) (2,373)
43,802 32,933
The investment properties were revalued on an open market NEMERE—_E——F+_-_A=+—H
basis at 31 December 2012 by independent, professionally RIS BEAS BRI HEN AR ETE ET
qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited. (HEBAERARBEARTEERS -
The Group's interests in investment properties at their net REBEBFREENERIZ LR EE
book amounts are analysed as follows: DI
2012 2011
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT AT TT
Mainland China A
— held on leases of between —BETER+FHN
10 and 50 years HE 883,520 819,655
At 31 December 2012, investment properties of R-EBE——F+—_HF=+—H " 184
approximately HK$879,310,000 (2011: HK$731,433,000) B 498879 310,000 T ( =T — —4F ¢
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities B M 731,433,0000T) & FHEIF - fEAK
(see Note 23). SEZRITRER D (RMFE23) -
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9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EEEE
Domain
names,
Exploration trademark
and and
Mining evaluation  computer
Goodwill right assets  software Total
HE -
BHRR L

Gk RERE HEEE  BREEH act
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
AT BETT  ARTT  BERTT  ART

At 1 January 2011 R_E——%—-H-H
Cost B 360,000 185,101 14,073 193 559,367
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3

and impairment KRE - (5,199) - (193) (5,392)
Net book amount IR (E 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553975
Year ended BE-ZT——F

31 December 2011 +TZA=T—HLEE
Opening net book amount HIREFE 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553,975
Exchange differences BN EE 31,111 6,372 1,891 - 39,374
Additions IR - - 1,683 - 1,683
Amortisation charge By - (6,981) - - (6,981)
Closing net book amount BRI E 391,111 179,293 17,647 - 588,051
At 31 December 2011 R-_ZB——F+-A=+—H
Cost AR 391,111 199,709 17,647 193 608,660
Accumulated amortisation EGp i

and impairment RRE - (20,416) - (193)  (20,609)
Net book amount IR (E 391,111 179,293 17,647 - 588,051
Year ended BE-Z——F

31 December 2012 +TZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount BIREFE 391,111 179,293 17,647 - 588,051
Exchange differences EHER 2,919 1,312 131 - 4,362
Additions R - - 202 - 202
Impairment charge ERE! (394,030) - - - (394,030
Amortisation charge B - (7,552) - - (7,552)
Closing net book amount HERIREFE - 173,053 17,980 - 191,033
At 31 December 2012 NZE-——F+-A=+—H
Cost AR 394,030 201,199 17,980 193 613,402
Accumulated amortisation R

and impairment KRfE (394,030) (28,146) - (193)  (422,369)
Net book amount IREFE - 173,053 17,980 - 191,033
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of the mining right of approximately
HK$7,552,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$6,981,000) is included in general and administrative
expenses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of mining right over its estimated useful life
of 30 years. The licence period of the mining right held by
the Group is 5 years. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group will be able to renew the mining right with relevant
government authorises continuously at minimal charges.

Impairment tests for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment reviews, goodwill set out
above is allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU) related
to mineral resources operation.

At 31 December 2012, the recoverable amount of the CGU
is determined based on fair value less costs to sell. In arriving
the fair value less costs to sell of the CGU, management has
taken reference to the sale and purchase agreement entered
into between Burwill Minerals Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and an independent third party.
An impairment charge of approximately HK$394,030,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2011, the recoverable amount of the CGU
was determined based on value in use calculation. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation were those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates
were based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs were based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepared cash flows forecast derived from the
most recent financial budget approved by management for
the next five years. The CGU cashflow beyond the 5-year
period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
The financial budget and growth rate were estimated with
reference to the development curve of the industry in the
PRC region. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows for CGU is 20.51%. In the opinion of the directors, no
material impairment loss was identified at 31 December
2011.

BVEE(#E)

BE - Z——H+-_A=+—8HI%F
€ - BRIEREHE 487,552,000 (=
T —— B#6,981,0007T) EBFEN—
MRITHER -

RIBRE A B SH R B AR IR EL (AT Al 2
REPR=tFHRAD #TE - AEHE
BEZRBEBEERMRAF - EFAR
AEEKENREER - EENBHER
T2 RABHE -

2R E R

ATHERR  ALRERZEBEEEDER
NEHREERXG <CRSELEN -

R-E——F+_A=+—H BEE
A B 2 AU EHEE TR E A FER T
ERAET EEEREEREXAR
AR —EAARREZENWE AR -
—RBUE= A MMEENMEER
BRETHReELBEMZ A AFERLE
BRA - RIS EBERRERRHBERE
#4975 % 394,030,000 7T °

R-E——F+_RA=+—H ReE
EBEMz f R EEEDEFEERER
B itEEREEZEZERESEA
EEREERANEZTINE - BREXR
BHE - EEERRERE AT SFE
eRECREAEMASELEM 2 ER
B AL KGR R - IBRERZE
NEREREE - EEREEKAE

BBEEM MBS AR EBME

o

AREBBEERBIERRAF Z &I
Y KESRERERERE - BHE
BRFHEz2ReELEMNRERED
DARABTEEERIDETHES - B
BEERBRERNESERBEMEZTT
EREHGE - ARBEIRESES
BUZHEESRET ML E2051% - £F
RE RZE—F+_A=+—8#
EAHREARERE -
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 MIEBATIRE R &8

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) MIBRARKRE
Company
AT

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG - KA 42,415 42,415
Capital contributions relating to B2 DA B S A 2 SR EM

share-based payment BT E 10,410 10,107

52,825 52,522

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded at
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid.

AEE AT R EFHAT
e ARAAIE -

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

RZZE——F+-_A=+—Hz=x

December 2012: EHEATWNT :
Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital tothe Group  Principal activities
KEBEEL
RN BRITR BE/BRER
£8 WEREE M BARRA REasl FEEBHE
Directly held:
BERA
Burwill and Company Limited Hong Kong limited HK$50,000,000 100%  Investment holding
liability company and £50,000 REER
ERRRALAT 750,000,000 7T
150,000 5
Burwill HK Portfolio Limited The British Virgin Islands limited ~ US$2 100%  Investment holding
liability company VE REER

ERRAEEERALAT
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 MIBATIRER &L (£E)
(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBATERE (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital tothe Group  Principal activities
TREREZ
HMAL SE BRITR BE/BRER
£ WEREELM BARRE RARDL  FEEHUE
Directly held: (continued)
B#RE  (B)
Burwill China Portfolio Limited The British Virgin Islands limited ~ US$1 100%  Investment holding
liability company 157 REER
AERAHESARAEAT
Smart Task Limited The British Virgin Islands limited ~ US$1 100%  Investment holding
liability company 1% REER
AEREHESARAEAT
Indirectly held:
&R
Burwill Minerals Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$1 100%  Investment holding
ERREERAT company BEAT REER
ERERELLA
Burwill Resources Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$1,000,000 100%  Steeltrading
ERMEERER AT company 71,000,000 7T MEES
ERERELLA
Burwill Resources Europe, S.A. Spain limited liability company ~ EUR62,000 70%  Steel trading
R AREEAT 62,0008 70 HEE 5
Burwill Steel Company Limited The British Virgin Islands limited ~ US$13 100%  Investment holding
liability company 13%71 WA
ABRAMEARAELT
Burwill Steel Pipes Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$80,000,000 100%  Steel processing
ERMEERAA company 780,000,000 WEmnT
EABREMALA
Burwill Commercial Hong Kong limited liability HKS1 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited company BEAT REER
ERBFHEFRAT EABREMALA
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 10 KMEBARRERGEER(E)

(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBATERE (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital tothe Group  Principal activities
REEEE
HMAL SE BRITR BE/BRER
£3 WEREELM BARRE RARDL  FEEHUE
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERE  (8)
Burwill Times Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERRREEERAT company BT REER
ERBRRELLA
Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Mainland China US$1,200,000 100%  Steel trading
Limited (Note (j) H 1,200,000%7T MEES
EHARE(LE)BRRRA M)
REmelEE HBRAF (Note () Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Steel processing
(B () G ARH 10,000,000 7T HEmT
Dongguan Hingwah Metals Mainland China HK$100,500,000 100%  Steel processing
Factory Limited (Note (i) H 7¥100,500,000 T BENT
REAZLERARAR (M)
Hing Wah Metals Factory Limited ~ Hong Kong limited liability HK$5,000,000 100%  Investment holding
FREASHBRAT company 755,000,000 7 RERR
ERERELLA
Hillot Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$500,000 100%  Securities investment
company F51500,000 T EARE
ERERELLA
Tai Xin Minerals Limited The British Virgin Islands limited ~ US$164 70.12%  Investment holding
liability company 164FT REER
AERAHESARAERT
EBREREARLA (Note(i)  Mainland China HK$50,000,000 70.12%  Investment holding
(B () G 750,000,000 REZR
KEBLEEER AR (Note ()  Mainland China US$39,000,000 70.12%  Mineral resources
(B () G 39,000,000%7 BEAR

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

10 MEBRARERGERE)

(continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBATERE (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity interest/
incorporation/ voting capital
operations and Issued and attributable
Name kind of legal entity fully paid capital tothe Group  Principal activities
rEEERZ
Rl AE - BRTR s/ BRER
&R WEREE M BHRRA BRAFAL  FEFEME
Indirectly held: (continued)
R#RE : (8)
RERBRERR LA (Note () Mainland China RMB37,793,500 70.12%  Mineral resources
(W) G AR#37,793,500 70 BEER
BNERELERAT (Note (i) Mainland China RMB61,000,000 69%  Commercial property
(B (i) G AR 61,000,000 7T AERNE
Yinmain Industrial Limited Hong Kong limited liability HK$2 100%  Property holding
EEEXERAA company BEAT BENE
BEBRELAF
Notes: Kz -

(ii)

Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, 3 227 & % & 5
AR A A, Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited, & &
REBERRLA, KEZLEEXBERAQF and KEFER
% A R~ Al are wholly foreign owned enterprises established
in Mainland China to be operated for 50 years up to March
2050, 21 years up to December 2028, 24 years up to July
2017, 30 years up to December 2037, 20 years up to
September 2029 and 10 years up to December 2017,
respectively.

BINEEREEER AT is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in Mainland China to be operated for 40 years up
to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2012.

(i) ERAMH (L8 BRAR - RmAl
BESERAR  RERERSHA
BRAR  EEREBEEERARF - ¥
CRERESHEAERARRKGREEE
BRARARFEKL ZINEEE
¥ 2XMONARTFE-TH
THF=R -+ FEZZTZ-N\F
+ZAZtNFEZZ—tFt
A Z+&=-FT=+F+=-A-
T EFEZZTAFAARTEEZEZS
T—tF+=f-

(i) BNEREXARARZRPBEKL
ZHINEBLE  BEMANTER
ZEZNFMA -

AEFEBREEAREAEHE
EEZUZMBLAR - EFRAIMN
BIAEECHBARZFE  HE<
RIRBANITK -

REzE—F——F+=-_HA=+—~H
I EFERERGRE - BRI
BAMBEEEER -
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10
(continued)

Balances with subsidiaries

(b)

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$1,254,922,000
which are unsecured, non-interest bearing (2011:
HK$387,200,000 and HK$892,093,000 which bear
interest at 5% per annum and nil, respectively) and
not repayable within one year, all the outstanding
balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.
1"

Investments in associates

(@)

At 1 January
Share of (losses)/profits of associates
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates
Dividends received
Additions
Exchange differences
Impairment losses (Note)
Transferred to assets
held for sale (Note 19)

At 31 December

Note:

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

n—H—H

bR & R (B1R), /&

10 MEBRARERGERE)

BIKEL /NI B ST

YA
EUAE
BE
PE X ER
BRI (M)
EREFLE
BE (K19

R+=—A=+—H

At 31 December 2012, the recoverable amount of Nam Wah Precision
Product (BVI) Limited which represented the fair value less costs to sell
was less than its carrying amount. An impairment loss of

approximately HK$2,237,000 was recognised.

(b) MBI
B B R R R RL BB
1,254,922,000 T K1 - BF 8
(ZZF——%F: %% 387,200,000
JC M 7B H5 892,093,000 7T BllE F
BERSEREFE)MNIER—F
NER - FTEETABRARER
HERTF &FE KR BEREE
11 BEATRBREREES
(a) HELATRE
Group
58

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
97,928 92,906
(521) 4,668
281 2,899
(3,395) (4,545)
4,603 2,000
489 -
(2,237) -
(25,000) -
72,148 97,928

Fit -

RZZE——_F+-_A=+—H " Nam Wah
Precision Product (BVI) Limited 2 7] ¢ [@] & %8
DEREATFERLEKRAETE BENEERR
8 EHMRERERIEL R 2237,000
o

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BEAIRERLELE)
(continued)
(a) Investments in associates (continued) (a) HEATIBRE(E)

The Group's share of the results of its associates, and
its aggregate assets and liabilities, are as follows:

Particulars Country of Profit/
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities Revenue (Loss)
BT B/
c1 BAFHE B LER BE 8% KA (%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  B%Tn  B¥Tn  B%Trn
2012
Indirectly held:
REREE
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin - - 141,378 (1,761)
Product (BVI) Limited ~ US$0.1 each, unlisted Islands
(Note 19) Lak BROIZT RERLHES
(W19 E]
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 223,109 160,112 480,218 920
Processing & 1S$20,000,000, e
Distribution Co. Ltd. unlisted
SEEEM NI BHER
AR 20,000,000%7T
E
BNt REZH Paid up capital of Mainland China 5,674 2,697 7,065 700
BRAR RMBS5,000,000, i
unlisted
EHERARK
5,000,000 7T
i
T.0.P. (Hong Kong) Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 4,648 3,077 367 (380)
Investment Company ~ HK$1 each, unlisted &%
Limited (Note) LTRER - B
ESPANEIE: BB LD
BRAR (M)
China Land Holdings ~ Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 53,063 48,460 - -
International HK$1 each, unlisted &
Limited (Note) LER SRA% T
MESERRERAR  ¥LEW
(hiz#)
286,494 214,346 629,028 (521)

Note: China Land Holdings International Limited directly holds

% of
interest
held
2]
E#%

20%

29%

30%

48.33%

45%

HiaF : R=ZF——F+=-A=+—8 &

33.33% equity interest of T.O.P. (Hong Kong) Investment
Company Limited as at 31 December 2012.

SEERARAREEEEFRNL (B
) I ABIRAF)33.33% HARHE ©
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11

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Investments in associates (continued)

201

Indirectly held:
RIERE

Nam Wah Precision
Product (BVI) Limited

Masteel (Yangzhou)
Processing &
Distribution Co. Ltd.

S (M) s
MIBRAF

BMELEZH
BRAAE

T.0.P. (Hong Kong)
Investment Company
Limited

HFEp(EE)RE
BRAR

Particulars

of issued capital
BT
BAGE

Ordinary shares of
US$0.1 each, unlisted

Lak sRoIxT
i

Paid up capital of
US$19,997,570,
unlisted
19,997,570% 7T -
i

Paid up capital of
RMB5,000,000,
unlisted
5,000,000 -
LM

Ordinary shares of
HK$1 each, unlisted

Lak 5k
BEIT LD

Balances with associates

Except for the amount due from an associate
amounting to approximately HK$2,649,000 (2011:
Nil) which bears interest at 10% per annum, all
outstanding balances with associates are unsecured,

Country of
incorporation

AMALER

The British Virgin
Islands

ABRARS

Mainland China
e

Mainland China
HE

Hong Kong
&R

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

11 BEQARRERGR(E)
(a) HEQTRE(E)
Profit/
Assets Liabilities Revenue (Loss)
\ Bfl/
BE 8 WA (B1)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT  A%Tn A%t
49,207 20,490 91,169 349
210,522 145,519 492,686 4207
5,178 2,921 7,005 161
3,135 1,184 - (49)
268,042 170,114 590,920 4,668
(b) HEEATIGEER

5

o RME MR EREFER -

% of
interest
held
)

e

EE %

20%

29%

30%

33.33%

2 N B R R 4D 7 8 2,649,000
L2011 4 « )T FE B 10E S
A H v &R R4 R ER

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 RERESZERMIA
Group £8
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables  profit or loss Total
BRAFEEB
BERR BEIIRK
FEU R BE zE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 31 December 2012 N-—ZE——F
+=HA=+—8H
Assets as per consolidated BixeEERER
balance sheet & =
Financial assets at fair value 12 A F(EiE B
through profit or loss HINR Y B 755 B - 700 700
Bills and accounts receivable  FEU =15 & FE U IR TE 1,189,374 - 1,189,374
Deposits and other receivables %% & H 1 FE WK 61,070 - 61,070
Due from associates BN B R 29,808 - 29,808
Due from a related company  BF:E R AR 1,751 - 1,751
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITAER 229,497 - 229,497
1,511,500 700 1,512,200
Group £HE
Liabilities at
amortised cost
R 8 R AR
ARMEE
HK$'000
BET T
At 31 December 2012 HR-—E—=—
t=ZA=+—
Liabilities as per consolidated iZ4xA&EEBE
balance sheet JafE
Borrowings (excluding ER(TBE
finance lease liabilities) mEHERE) 999,334
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 1,757
Due to related companies B EUNGIE ] 23,315
Bills and accounts payable BT 295 K R IR TE 239,617
Other payables and accruals ~ EEENIRIE N EFTE A 143,428
1,407,451
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Group

At 31 December 2011

Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Other financial assets

Bills and accounts receivable

Deposits and other receivables

Due from associates

Due from a related company

Cash and bank balances

Group

At 31 December 2011

Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

Borrowings (excluding
finance lease liabilities)

Finance lease liabilities

Due to related companies

Bills and accounts payable

Other payables and accruals

eS|

RZE——F
+=-—A=+—8
R EEREBR
NEE

BT EERER
SINREBA 5 B B
HEMBEE

JE W15 S FE MR IR TR
we METREK

NIV G
BB N AR K

B MRTTHS

ER(TRE
MELERE)
MEHERE
REAERAIFIA
FANES IS ALSE
HE RN IRE M ERE A

12 BRERES2EMIAE)

Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BRAVEER
=F/953 BRIRE
JEUK BE kL]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T
- 6,360 6,360
- 71,998 71,998
1,287,014 - 1,287,014
74,083 - 74,083
185 - 185
1,751 - 1,751
246,610 - 246,610
1,609,643 78,358 1,688,001
Liabilities at
amortised cost
biog: 5PN
AR EE
HK$’'000
BT T
1,143,636
2,307
24,079
228,595
126,128
1,524,745

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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13 INVENTORIES 13 FE
Group
£8
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Raw materials R 43,039 69,928
Work-in-progress R 4,386 3,661
Finished goods B2URY T 54,591 93,116
Consumables JHFEM 5,567 1,110
107,583 167,815
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included FERAKPERAERAINH AEERKN
in cost of sales amounted to approximately B S 58 T 49781 4,663,908,000 7T ( —
HK$4,663,908,000 (2011: HK$7,081,881,000). T4 : 7 081,881,0007T) °
14  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 14 BRAFEBBEXZFIENMEEE
OR LOSS
Group Company
£H N
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT BT T BETIT
Listed equity securities R ARES
— Hong Kong — &HE 497 5,015 239 250
— Overseas — B 203 1,345 - -
Market value of listed EmESsmE
securities 700 6,360 239 250
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value A TEEEBIERVNENMBEEEND
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income and net FEEZY EREtEaRAIEBRA
gains” in the consolidated income statement (see Note 27). KUz FEE ] otk (R MHEE27) -
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current FTERANEZEASANEENRBEEEERS
bid prices in an active market. B7HEEHBTE -
At 31 December 2012, none of the equity securities listed in R-ZE——F+=-B=+—H0  FTERQ
Hong Kong (2011: HK$4,764,000) were pledged to secure EB TR AES(ZE——F : B
margin facility of the Group (see Note 23). 4,764,0007T) AEBEFEREEEM (R
MizE23) o
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15

WEBHTE A RIEER
HARREB

Contingent consideration in relation to
the acquisition of subsidiaries

On 31 March 2010, the Group acquired 51% interest in Tai
Xin Minerals Limited which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The consideration was satisfied by the
payment of HK$260,000,000 in cash and the issue of
685,700,000 new shares (“Consideration Shares”) by the
Company to Tai Xin Investment Limited and Tai Xin Holdings
Limited (as “vendor”).

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement of Tai Xin
Minerals Limited, the vendor has irrevocably and
unconditionally undertaken and guaranteed to Burwill
Minerals Limited (“BML") (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) that the net profit as reflected in the audited
consolidated financial statements of Tai Xin Minerals Limited
for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 would not
be less than HK$120,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”).
The vendor has also entered into a share pledge with BML in
favour of BML such that in the event that the Guaranteed
Profit was not met, BML would have the right to deal with
or dispose of the Consideration Shares, on the basis of eight
Consideration Shares for every HK$1 of shortfall. The fair
value of contingent consideration arrangement was
estimated by applying market value approach.

Changes in fair value of contingent consideration are
recognised in “fair value losses on other financial assets” in
the consolidated income statement.

On 30 August 2012, the Company acquired, through BML,
the entire Consideration Shares of the Company allotted
and issued (see Note 20(c)).

HEeMBEE
Group
L]
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
- 71,998

MN-ZZ—-ZTE=A=+—H KEBEK
BT RBEZRESFEMALZ A A Ta
Xin Minerals Limited #51% ## 25 X (&
LA 7 1 260,000,000 7T 38 & & BB AR A A
# 17 FTai Xin Investment Limited  Tai
Xin Holdings Limited ([ & & 1)
685,700,000 A% ¥7 i% 5 ([ R B A 7 1) X
e

R 4% Tai Xin Minerals Limited f% 15 B & 1%
FHBAHDTAHEE - SRt B R
BEBRAB([EREX]) (BARFZ
2 EMB AR &ERIRE  Tai Xin
Minerals Limited & Z — T —Z 4+ — A
=+ —HIEUMRFELEREZES TR
KRB ZRFETELREE
120,000,000 7t ([{RBAFI]) - BT WE
EEFEEHRRERD - BUE MR EE
REBERFE  ERBEREEEENRD
ERERD  FIREERGEE I1TE
HeRE ) \RRERD - RARELHE
MR FEEDISEEIAGHE -

FARBZATEEZINEGEAERARY
[(REMBEENNFERBRE] PRER -

RZTE——FENA=+H ARFEB
EREEBAMBEREREITHRE
5 (RHiEE 20(0)) °

20126 BEHERERAR
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16  BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 FEWEE  ERRERETCERK
Group Company
£ AE]
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT T
Bills and accounts receivable  FEULZ 15 K e Y R 18
— net (Note (a)) — FE (Mt @) 1,189,374 1,287,014 - -
Loan to a director (Note 39) = EE K (AfaF39) - 195 - -
Deposits, prepayments and e AR
other receivables HerEls 187,879 280,165 104 506
187,879 280,360 104 506

Less: non-current portion W SEmBEE D
Prepayments TR (38,540) (39,217) - -

Current portion SmE D 149,339 241,143 104 506

1,338,713 1,528,157 104 506

Notes: Kt -

(a) The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sale of (a) AEELTBHEERABLTERF=1TAE
goods ranging from 30 days to 120 days. Rentals in respect of leased —BZTHZERE - HEMEZRSKA
properties are payable by the tenants on a monthly basis. BmEPKAXRNT -

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable is as follows: FEM I R U IRIRIR IR D ATAA T

Group
£H
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Within three months =EAR 931,826 1,186,474
Over three months but within six months BA=EA MRS ~NEA 257,548 100,498
Over six months but within twelve months BESNEAm A EA+=EA - 1
Qver twelve months Bet+ @A - 41
1,189,374 1,287,014
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to bills FEW = R IR IR S A e E S
and accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of % EANEBARSES @ Eiht REH -
customers, internationally dispersed.
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16  BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 16

Notes: (continued)

(b) As of 31 December 2012, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$471,291,000 (2011: HK$137,831,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based on past
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

Within three months =EARA
Over three months but within six months BiE =8 A i@ E A
Over six months but within twelve months BN EAm A EBE+ —EA
Over twelve months @ild+ @A

(0) As of 31 December 2012, none of the accounts receivable were

impaired and provided for (2011: Nil).

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts receivable are
denominated in the following currencies:

Us$ E
EUR BT
RMB AR
HK$ T
Other HE

FEWERE - BEUiRERE T EKK

(%)

K - (#)

(b)

RZZE——F+-A=+—8 afiExHK
B/ E U AR TE 4978 # 471,291,000 ( =&
——4F : ¥ 137,831,0007T) ° UL ERIBH
REEREEAUBRENBLIRES - BIF
WA - AT AR EE EARIE o It E R
IRIEAIRER DT -

Group
£H

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
218,975 37,291
252,316 100,498
- 1
- 41
471,291 137,831

Wi EWIREN —F——F+=-A=1+—H
WE(ZT——F &) -

7N B ) MR B 0 e M DR TR A BR T < R DA
THEEREN

Group
£H

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
1,036,920 1,147,383
78,844 69,330
52,330 46,926
21,277 23,372
3 3
1,189,374 1,287,014

2028 HRERERAA
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16

17

BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

At 1 January mn—HA—H

Provision for accounts receivable impairment R L bR TR (B B

Accounts receivable written off
during the year as uncollectible

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts receivable
have been included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

The other classes within bills and accounts receivable do not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The outstanding balances represent amounts due from/to
subsidiaries of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited, a
company in which Mr. Chan Shing and Ms. Lau Ting, the
directors of the Company have beneficial interests. The
outstanding balances with related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The maximum
outstanding balance due from a related company during the
year was approximately HK$1,751,000 (2011:
HK$1,751,000).

16

17
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Group
£=H

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
- 2,589
3,465 126
(3.465) (2,715)

HERERKRERBORINBERNE BHE
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EERBIELZIRZAREREAR
o BN HE R R RA A S
PENERBEREE  FABEQARL
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18 BE&RBTHEE
Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T BT BETT
Cash at banks and on hand  R{TREHFHEE 204,832 158,041 31,124 588
Short-term bank deposits g BRIR1T1F R 24,665 88,569 - -
229,497 246,610 31,124 588

19

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
0.78% (2011: 1.52%); these deposits have an average
maturity of 79 days (2011: 246 days).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had certain short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$24,665,000 (2011:
HK$25,124,000) pledged with the banks (see Note 38(d)).

At 31 December 2012, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$40,614,000 (2011: HK$76,154,000) are
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in Mainland
China. The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China
is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the Chinese Government. Also, the exchange rate is
determined by the Chinese Government.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2012, assets held for sale represented
20% equity investments held for sale in Nam Wah Precision
Product (BVI) Limited (“Nam Wah"), an associate of the
Company, after the management approved the disposal
plan of such equity investment. On 28 December 2012,
Burwill and Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share repurchase agreement
with Nam Wah on the repurchase of the 20% equity
investments in Nam Wah at a consideration of
HK$25,000,000 (the “Share Repurchase”). As at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the Share Repurchase
has not been completed.

19

EHRTERNERANER B078E (=
T——F 1528 ZEFEZINFEHE
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R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H B& R
SRITHE 88 #0815 40,614,000 L (—F——
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20

SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY 20

At 1 January 2011
Issue of shares (Note (b))

At 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012
Repurchase of shares (Note (c))

At 31 December 2012

RZZE——F—H—H
BT (KA b))
RZE——F+_A=+—H
r—E——F—H—H
SR (FaE ()

Notes:

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 6,800 million shares
(2011: 6,800 million shares) with a nominal value of HK$0.1 per share
(2011: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Pursuant to the top-up placing and subscription agreement dated 21
February 2011 and the supplemental agreement dated 24 February
2011, the Company allotted and issued 460,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.48 each to
Glory Add Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, on 4
March 2011 following completion of the top-up placing of an
aggregate of 460,000,000 existing shares to not less than six
independent investors at a placing price of HK$0.48 each. A net
proceeds of approximately HK$214 million raised was used for the
expansion of mineral resources and as general working capital of the
Group.

On 30 August 2012, the Company acquired, through BML, the
entirety of the 685,700,000 shares (the “Repurchase Shares”) of the
Company allotted and issued in the name of Tai Xin Holdings Limited
and charged in favour of BML in accordance with the terms of the
share pledge dated 31 March 2010 and the share purchase agreement
dated 5 November 2009 (as amended by the two supplemental
agreements dated 24 December 2009 and 31 March 2010
respectively) (the “Share Repurchase”). No consideration is required to
be paid to Tai Xin Holdings Limited in order to effect the Share
Repurchase. The Share Repurchase was completed on 30 August
2012, and following completion, the Repurchase Shares were
cancelled in accordance with the Companies Act.

BE —AEERARQF

Number of
ordinary Nominal
shares value
EZBEREE HE
(thousands) HK$'000
(F&H) BT
4,415,360 441,536
460,000 46,000
4,875,360 487,536
(685,700) (68,570)
4,189,660 418,966

TERNEEHABEERBE(ZT——5F:
681E) i BEREEABBOIT(ZF——
FERERIT) MAERETRNBE
2HRR -

BE-_F——F -+ HZELERHE
ERRERER - T-——F_A-t+WAx
Wrth  WERIEERAEE 048 TN EE
5T K 5t 8 1% ¥ Bl & & $£460,000,000 R R A
B FRORABBULIREEE  RNRF]
BERZZT——F=ANBIERSRER 0487
7 52 B8 {5 B 5% I ¥ 17 460,000,000 f& K A 7]
L@ T AR R EZHEGlory Add
Limited ° FTS 5B F BB 2. 14 BT AE
AEEREEREGRERE—REEES -

RZTE—ZFN\A=+8  AQRRIEBH

—E-TE=ZA=t+-HZRHEAREB
HE_TENF+-ARAAZRNEE HE
KBS A—TENF+_AZ-tHAER
—E-TFE=A=t+—AzMOMRBERMN
ERDIER - BB ABEEEA D RS RET
F Tai Xin Holdings Limited 3 & # F & 1% 5
2 #1685,700,000 A% ([ @ 8 B (3 1) A 2 B AL
B (T B8 J) o A% 1) B 8 I & M Tai Xin
Holdings Limited 3z S (E A (X 8 Az fn BB R
—E-—FNA=THEK - ERE BB
RO EIRBEREARDE T A -

132

Annual Report 2012 Burwill Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 B IS T Kz

21

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors or non-executive director) of the Company and its
subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding for this purpose
shares issued on exercise of options. The subscription price
will be determined by the directors, and will not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of granting the
options; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of granting the options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares. The 2002 Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 6 June 2002, after which period no further
options will be granted or accepted but the provisions of the
2002 Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8
June 2011, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2011 Option
Scheme”). Under the 2011 Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to employees (including executive
directors or non-executive) of the Company and its
subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding for this purpose
shares issued on exercise of options. The subscription price
will be determined by the directors, and will not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the trading day of granting the
options; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of granting the options; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares. The 2011 Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 8 June 2011, after which period no further
options will be granted or accepted but the provisions of the
2011 Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects. No share option was granted, forfeited,
exercised or expired under the 2011 Option Scheme since its
adoption on 8 June 2011.

21
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21 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY 21 LUBHOXAZHM — NEERAAT
(continued) (4)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and MR RSB R E AR E
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EHITEEEHSHT
2012 2011
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option  (thousands)
T EE FHITRE
(ZBKRE BRE (SERE R HE
#&T) (F=h) EIT) (F&t)
At 1 January R—H—H 0.50 85,660 0.50 91,600
Granted 2IFH - - 0.50 2,400
Forfeited 284 0.50 (5,460) 0.50 (8,340)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 0.50 80,200 0.50 85,660
Out of the 80,200,000 outstanding options (2011: A [H AR 7782 80,200,000 (= F ——4F :
85,660,000), 80,200,000 (2011: 59,500,000) options were 85,660,000) f# % # # + 80,200,000 ( =
exercisable. No share option was exercised or expired during T ——4F : 59,500,000) BB P AR F17
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 Nil). FoHz2—_T——F+-_A=+—HIt
FE BEBEREZETEXIH(ZF
——F |-
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the RERBARITE 2 BERE DB RIT
following expiry dates and exercise prices: FEMAT
Exercise price
in HK$ per Options
share option (thousands)
TEE B
Expiry date ZI8 AR (BEREST) (F3H)
2012 2011
2002 Option Scheme ZEECFRERE
5 October 2013 —T—=%+HEAH 0.50 80,200 83,260
27 April 2014 —E-FENA=++EA 0.50 - 2,400
The vesting period of the options is from the date of the BEEsBERAREERRETER
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period. FsE B I -
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21

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group recognised a share option expense of
approximately HK$266,000 (2011: HK$3,739,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the Company had 80,200,000
options (2011: 85,660,000 options) outstanding under the
2002 Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issuance of 80,200,000 (2011:
59,500,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately HK$8,020,000
(2011: HK$5,950,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$32,080,000 (2011: HK$23,800,000) (before issue
expenses).

21

RGN 2B — NEERA QT

(%)

ARERRBE-_E——F+-_A=+—
B IEFE R AR RE S 4978 % 266,000
JTL(ZZF——4 : &% 3,739,0007T) °

R-ZT——F+_-_/A=+—H RBE=
T FEREE - AREMERITE
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85,660,00017) o FE AR EIRITIR AL TE
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22

At 1 January 2011
Loss for the year
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates
Currency translation differences
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Employees share option scheme:
— value of employee services
Changes in ownership
interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012

Loss for the year

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates

Currency translation differences
— Group
— Associates

Repurchase of shares

Employees share option scheme:
— value of employee services

OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS 22 EHEvRHENLNREER
Group
&8
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed ~ redemption ~ Revaluation ~ Translation ~ compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
BAEE PUGEG]
RiNEE ARG BARH Ed EfhGE hEET  JREHE RERN &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEfr  ENTR  B%Tr  #%TR BETr B¥TR BETr A%t BETx
WZE—%-f-A 563,535 - 99,172 12,037 11213 80,162 9,548 836,225 1,611,892
ERBE - - - - - - - (304687)  (304,687)
B ERAED
2EHA - - - - - 2,899 - - 2,899
SRERZR - - - - - 65940 - - 65940
ki 174,800 - - - - - - - 174,800
AR (6,723) - - - - - - - (6,723)
[EEBRENE -
—EERBEE - - - - - - 3739 - 3739
MEAAFEEER 2D
(FHEiEslE)
- (50,025) - - - - - - (50,025)
WZE—F+-A=1-H 731,612 (50,025) 9,172 12,037 1,213 149,001 13,287 531,538 1,497,835
Group
£8
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed ~ redemption  Revaluation  Translation compensation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
-v.NelH BRI
REE  EARE  AABRR fE  EfEE  RENEE  CHERE  REEX a5
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
B8t E¥Tn  AMTr  E%Tn EMTn E¥Tn A%Tn E%Tn EMTx
W-E--#-F-H 731,612 (50,025) 99,172 12,037 1,213 149,001 13,287 531,538 1,497,835
FREER - - - - - - - (465055  (465,055)
FiEERAED
E 0N - - - - - 21 - - 21
—5E - - - - - 3,905 - - 3,905
—BERF - - - - - 489 - - 489
mER L (4,656) - - - - - - - (4,656)
[EBERETE -
—EERKER - - - - - - 266 - 266
WZZ-—E+ZB=+-H 726,956 (50,025) 99,172 12,037 1,213 153,676 13,553 66,483 1,033,065

At 31 December 2012
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22 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 22 HEREREEEF (&)

Company
A
Capital Share-based
Share redemption Contributed compensation  Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
ErOR R A

Ritia® B HABR ZWRERE REEA ke
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ARTT  ARTn  ERTn BT BETn AR

At 1 January 2011 W=%——%—-A-H 563,535 12,037 228,004 9,548 631997 1445121
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (6,164) (6,164)
Issue of shares BRM 174,800 - - - - 174,800
Share issue expenses e GEE (6,723) - - - - (6,723)
Employees share option scheme: BB EREHE -

— value of employee services — EERBER - - - 3,739 - 3,739
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—F+-f=1-H 731,612 12,037 228,004 13,287 625833 1,610,773
At 1 January 2012 WZE--F-A-H 731,612 12,037 228,004 13,287 625833 1,610,773
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (17,0868)  (17,086)
Repurchase of shares EERG (4,656) - - - - (4,656)
Employees share option scheme: B BRkTE: 2 -

— value of employee services —EEREEE - - - 266 - 266
At 31 December 2012 WZE-ZF+-R=1-H 726,956 12,037 228,004 13,553 608,747 1,589,297

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the book value
of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired; and (ii)
transfer from share premium account. It can be utilised for
issuance of bonus shares or for capital redemption upon
repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if
(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

The Company's reserves (excluding retained profits) as at 31
December 2012 available for distribution to shareholders
were represented by the contributed surplus of
approximately HK$228,004,000 (2011: HK$228,004,000).

BABERTD ()LD 3817 2 T (B BB A P
BRARZFEERMEZER M)A
Pin g EIREA - AR HEIITA
PR R R FEAERIER -

REARE-NN—FRQEE BAR
BAI D IRARE - BEIORDIKE - A
FIREEEEIBEH R (NHEEE A E
REEINERAE DHTRANKRND
wER AN KARFTEEEME N
RERDIRFARER -

W-EBE——F+-A=+—0 A#H
REREZARNBFHE(TEEREA
) B B85 228,004,000 70( =
T——4F : ¥ 228,004,000 7T) °
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23 BORROWINGS 23 B/
Group
55
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Non-current FERED
Bank borrowings RITER 191,297 166,365
Other loans from non-controlling B8 A Bl FEIE AR AR R Y
shareholders of subsidiaries EvEX 59,722 60,040
Finance lease liabilities MmEHERE 1,220 1,750
252,239 228,155
Current D
Bank overdrafts (Note 35(b)) RITE X (B 35(b)) 5,758 866
Bank borrowings TITER 732,557 915,654
Other loans EvER 10,000 -
Other loans under margin facilities FEMETETER - m
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 537 557
748,852 917,788
Total borrowings EER 1,001,091 1,145,943
Secured borrowings are as follows: BEAEZTAT
2012 2011
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank borrowings RITEK 601,003 420,211
Other loans under margin facilities FREETETER - 711
Finance lease liabilities mEHEEE 1,757 2,307
602,760 423,229
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$601,003,000 (2011: iR 17 B 48 #601,003,000( = &
HK$420,211,000) were secured by certain leasehold land ——4F : ##420,211,0007T) LA {0 FH
and land use rights, buildings, investment properties, Etmk T EAE BF KREDY
pledged bank deposits and interest of shares in subsidiaries ¥ BHRRTEREWNEB ARG E
(see Notes 6, 7, 8 and 18). Finance lease liabilities are (M6 7 8% 18) - giEHME
effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to BEER LERER AAEEARNE
the lessor in the event of default. EEEMERGEBLEA -
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23

BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, other loans under margin facilities
were secured by certain financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of equity securities listed in Hong Kong held
under margin accounts, with market value of approximately
HK$4,764,000 (see Note 14).

Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and not
repayable within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending

23

EX#E)

RZZE——F+ZA=+—H FEHM
éTH*% KIAEBHEFFEF DA

AFEBBERIENTBEEENES
B ETELBE 4,764,000 STIEE I
(RBIzE14) -

B 8 2~ B] SR Hxﬁx%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁgmiﬁﬁ
A RMERTER—FAEE

AEBADRITEERAXBITEAEE
ETAERBEFBMNROMAR
HEHER Z’]%Eﬁééﬁi BMEEKNEE

arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were HE o BEARE .;_}i%i{y ﬁ'JETEHXEI’J
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would EHEAEARNEREESR . AEFe TH
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors BLER 2y ﬁz/jm;_ﬁ\ ,JDL REBE
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the TEIE e R T — ﬁgi 15 & TR
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 3 Qe RZTE——FR_FT—_F+=
3.1(c). As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, none of the A=4+—8" $’$.Iﬁ5_}§ﬁ%§a}%
covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had been B=ZE/ Y -
breached.
The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows: EBEEZMIEBENT
Bank borrowings and
overdrafts Other loans
BITERREX HEER
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T B¥TT BT
Within one year —FR 738,315 916,520 10,000 711
Between one and two years —EZZHFN 58,213 81,181 - -
Between two and five years —_ERFR 44,776 85,184 59,722 60,040
Over five years BiEAF 88,308 - - -

929,612 1,082,885 69,722 60,751
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23

BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair

values.

23 ER(#E)

B IRE EEE QT EARL -

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Gross finance lease liabilities mEHEaE
— minimum lease payments: — HEBEERMK
Not later than one year TR —F 613 662
Later than one year and not BB —FETBBASF
later than five years 1,289 1,900
1,902 2,562
Future finance charges on finance leases & E 2 KRR 15 E FH (145) (255)
Present value of finance lease liabilities BREHEREZRE 1,757 2,307
The present value of finance lease MEHEREZRBENT ¢
liabilities is as follows:
Not later than one year TBE—F 537 557
Later than one year and not i —FETBERT
later than five years 1,220 1,750
1,757 2,307
The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting period Rk s BHRMEBREFEOT -
are as follows:
2012 2011
USS RMB  EUR  HK$ Other  US$  RMB EUR  HK$  Other
En AR% & BT He Er AR BT BT HEe
Bank borrowings RITEK 3.3% 7.1% 4.0% 2.5% - 39% 6.3% 5.9% 1.7% -
Finance lease liabilites @A HEEE - - - 5.1% 5.0% - - - 2.7% 5.2%
EEERNIRE BT EB BB

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

us$
RMB
HK$
EUR
Other

NS
o
BT
HE

7=

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T

565,812 708,100
211,292 153,785
164,842 139,274
58,737 144,292
408 492
1,001,091 1,145,943
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24 REFTEH
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is EEFTERIEE 2 8 8@zEmnT :
as follows:
Group
£
2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T
At 1 January n—H—H (157,856) (145,543)
Exchange differences PE =58 (3,237) (5,688)
Income statement credit/(charge) ERFRFER(HRB) 4,515 (6,625)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (156,578) (157,856)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FENEEREHREELNBEZEEH(RE
during the year, without taking into consideration the EZEER R E 2 SR T
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as
follows:

Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
EEFEHEE MERERE REME ie fag
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARt ERTT BETR ART BRTx ARTr RARTn ARTn

At 1 January »m—A—H (85) (330) (127,653) (112,731)  (63,320)  (61,368) (191,058) (174,429)
Credited/(Charged) to EERR

the income statement iR/ (%) 97 432 (12265 (9818  (2103) (1393  (14271)  (10,779)
Exchange differences EXES (12) (187)  (1,000) (5104  (2,330) (559)  (3.343)  (5850)
At 31 December “+=ZA=1+-H - (85 (140,919) (127,653)  (67,753)  (63,320) (208,672) (191,058)

Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
EEREHEE HERERE HE e -
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
A®Tn ARETRT BRTn ERTr RMTR ERTT E®TR ARTR

At 1 January m—A—H 1,840 1,244 31,253 27533 109 109 33,202 28,886
(Charged)/Credited to TERR

the income statement (1) /g (700) 596 19,486 3,558 - - 18,786 4,154
Exchange differences EXESR (20) - 126 162 - - 106 162
At 31 December i ey el = 1,120 1840 50,865 31,253 109 109 52,094 33202
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 24 EEFERL (&)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when EEETEEMNTEEAMBEERIES
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax HMEaEEy  mMEERERSRRE—
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred BT - B A R FTIS R & E R
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The HEFREHABEEMK - Lt EEIEK
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, 1z YIS REAGEEEABERNI
are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as assets/ T R—ERNEIR DN EE/AE
liabilities not realisable/due within one year: HI)0E -
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Deferred income tax assets REFTISTEE 42,620 24,899
Deferred income tax liabilities REFTIST AR (199,198) (182,755)
(156,578) (157,856)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses RIEFSHEE R EREH SN
carry forwards to the extent that the realisation of the BRARERVRANEE ML EE Y
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. TIB1EMER - REE B RKERHIEBELHE
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately ¥ 603,698,000 C( = F — — F : H MK
HK$603,698,000 (2011: HK$341,762,000), which certain 341,762,0007T) * HP SN FHEEEM
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland BB - FEIAMAK Y 2B A ER
Revenue Department. Tax losses of the PRC subsidiaries BMEERARDE - MEBKLZHE
have an expiry period of five years, while tax losses of the NANBEBWEDNEAE o BIBA 4w LA
Hong Kong subsidiaries have no expiry date. Tax losses can IR IR FERTRUIA o
be carried forward to offset future taxable income.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIEFPEEERETE  RPE R
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign PR AL 2 SNEIIR B i MANEIE B B TR
investors from the foreign investment enterprise established Z R BZRBN10% TEHITE o BEARER
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 ZENF-—A—HERUTEAR-ZEZ
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December tF+ZA=F+—RAUEZEF - f§F
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there Mt B ANE IR B & BT B R VAR AT L
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction RABGELY  ASRE 2B E A e
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is A-pAEBmME @BHAB XA
5-10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes 5-10% ° AL - ANEE AR ERN R EA
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates MRS 2 ZEHTB AR R E R RIFR
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings ZEFENF-HA-REBELZBFMmMIK
generated from 1 January 2008. 2 B BB AR TEHNR
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24

25

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2012, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group'’s subsidiaries and associates established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries and associates will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China
for which deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$16,840,000 at 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$5,155,000).

BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as follows:

Within three months

Over three months but within
six months

Over six months but within
twelve months

Over twelve months

=EAR
7N E A

+=M@A
A+ —EA

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

us$ E
EUR BT
RMB AR
Others HE

24

25

B =18 A m R

BB/ E A TS

IEREFRISHL ()

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H HER
REBPA R B R 2 W B A7) K
BN R Y AR BE H 2 A A 2 TR0 R AR
REMBELERESH - EB2RE - WEN
BAa M E QR TRATEEN A AR
RDIRZE BT o AR ERBELEFTSH
BEZPBEAMME A E R E QR
BWHZEBCEREERN_T——F
+ A=+ —BALDHABE
16,840,000 C(=ZF ——F : HAEBE
5,155,000 7T) °

BN REREMAIRE

FEN RIB M B IRERE DT AT

Group
]

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

224,436 226,005
125 1,533

124 922
14,932 135
239,617 228,595

AEEOENRELEMIRENKRE S
BATHERSEML

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
177,375 188,483
38,868 13,367
23,348 26,719
26 26
239,617 228,595

20126 BEHERERAR
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26 PROVISION FOR LAND RESTORATION AND

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

At 1 January
Exchange differences
Income statement charge

At 31 December

The provision for land restoration and environmental costs is
in relation to the estimated costs of complying with the
Group's obligations for land reclamation. These costs are
expected to be incurred on mine closure, which are based

on current mineral reserve estimates.

27 OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

Fair value gains/(losses) on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest income:

— on bank deposits
— on other receivables
— on due from an associate

Dividend income

Fair value gains on investment properties

Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Others

26 THERRBRERERE

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T
®—A—H 4,226 2,943
EH =58 32 153
bei=En gl oS - 1,130
R+-—A=+—H 4,258 4,226

WMEBHBHARESE -

27 HeWARKZFERE

THERMRERABREGEEERNAEE
HEBRNETHBAARZ G - LIEK
ADREBEREBBEERFHEML - L8

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
BEATEERER
PRI B EE
RNFEUWES(EE) 2,863 (9,033)
FEUA
— RITHEX 1,087 1,455
— HeElEk 1,544 905
— BEEQARIRK 22 -
4SRN 80 85
REYEN AN FEYE 49,060 38,611
HEME « WS R
2 1B (65) (449)
HEE 4,167 10,871
58,758 42,445
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28 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
— owned assets
— assets held under finance leases
Amortisation of prepaid operating
lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Operating lease rentals
Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 29)
Provision for impairment of
accounts receivable
Net exchange losses
Auditors’ remuneration

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Wages and salaries

Share options granted to directors
and employees

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (Note (a))

Staff welfare

28 RMEIENEM

SITESHER AN ~ SHE R D HERM—R
RITBERANERDNNT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
LEN =YY
e
—BEEBE 10,562 10,366
—RMEHEEE 768 901
YA & E T B R
368 367
B EERH 7,552 6,981
LiEHEdES 5,801 2,356
EERNAY (BREEEHE)
(H1a#29) 93,435 96,834
FE MR TR R (B
3,465 126
Tt i=| 3,520 1,217
% SR AN B & 1,050 1,030
29 EEEAMEX
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T T T
HeT1E 83,728 84,571
RYEZERESNBRE
266 3,739
RIRAAN — RE R AT E
(K17 (@) 5,755 5,043
BT EF 3,686 3,481
93,435 96,834

20126 BEHERERAR
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29

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the “Original Scheme”),
which is managed by independently administered funds. The Group’s
monthly contributions are based on 5% of employees’ monthly
salaries. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the Group’s
contribution and the accrued interest thereon upon retirement or
leaving the Group after completing ten years of service or at a
reduced scale of 30% to 90% after completing three to nine years of
services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December 2000, the
Group has arranged for these employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Prior to 1 June 2012, both the
employer’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
maximum of HK$1,000 per month per employee. From 1 June 2012,
both the employer’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
maximum of HK$1,250 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes to retirement
plans at rates of approximately 14% to 22% of the basic salaries of its
employees in Mainland China, and has no further obligations for the
actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions
to the aforementioned schemes was approximately HK$5,755,000
(2011: HK$5,043,000) without deduction of forfeited contributions of
the Original Scheme.

29 BERBANFEXE)

Kt

(@)

EBRE — RERKE

AEBRRBEERERHZEMBUALER
ZAERFERARFE (RS - AEEET
AZHHIRER AFHNS5%ATHE - RIRIKK
TR TERBEBEMAASE  EEHERE
Wl EEBROEFTLEFFE - ZROm=
ENFIRBERIFTR 30% Z= 90% LL FI 4 ER

ANEBAE-_TTTF+_A—BREABREE
EELZH2ERFMATE T8 ([BESS
) —EmB LA TEN R TR
2l BiIFRESHE AEERHEEESA
BRI ATESEONETE BAKE
BHEMS%ER - R-F——FxXF—H
Al BEEREENSEERESATEREER
FAAKI000TL A=T——FA—AH
B BEEIREENSEHRIZRATEREE
FAAH1,2507T ©

REHEDEPIRE  ARERETEESS
HEREYMRARGE - REEREERR
RHFBHI14% Z 22% 50 o FRFE KO -
AEEBAAEETERERRES N RERK
BENOEE - BREPRRNGTEARRE
MEKNEEHEREESEE -

RER - B E st B D O AR
#)78 5755000 ( = F — —F: BE
5,043,0007T) * WEEFORR R+ BIARUHER o
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 29 EEENEX(E)

Wi - ()

Notes: (continued)

EEREREEESTH

(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b)

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLtEFE" &

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December

2012 is set out below: EENFMOT :
Employer's
Salaries, contribution Employee
allowances Discretionary  to pension share option
Name of director Fees and benefits bonuses scheme benefits Total
e O2H BINGHEIN  REEBRE
ESpE ik REHN BiERS EEHR B it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BETR BETR BETR BETR
Executive directors YTES
Mr. CHAN Shing B - 5,859 500 242 54 6,655
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EBREE - 2,616 300 120 54 3,090
Mr. YANG Dawei BARERE - 600 - - 22 622
Ms. LAU Ting BERt - 4,602 450 212 54 5318
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia ESfki s - 1,847 180 85 54 2,166
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PEREE - 1,792 280 83 54 2,209
Mr. YIN Mark FUKAE - 1,618 150 64 54 1,886
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRIEE - 1,792 320 83 54 2,249
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREA 363 - - - 2 385
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BRELAE 300 - - - 22 322
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (Note (i) FRBEYE %5 A (B3 (i) 300 - - - - 300
Mr. CHIANG Bun (Note () R E () 4 - - - - 4

20126 BEHERERAR
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29

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December

2011 is set out below:

Name of director

BENA

Executive directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (Note (i)

Mr. MIAO Gengshu (Note (iii))

Non-executive director
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Note (iii)

Notes:

HTES
B E
EERAE
BRELE
Bt
BfLt
BERELE
FUEE
BRXEE

BUFHTES
EERRLE
BREARESE A (it (i)
B & SR A (B (i)

FUTES
SEVREM (i)

(i) Appointed on 21 December 2012.

(i) Appointed on 10 October 2011.

(iii) Resigned on 1 October 2011.

Five highest paid individuals

29 EEEAEXE)

Wi - ()

(b)

ESREREEEHH(E)

BE-F——FT-A=+—ALEE &

EENHMAT
Employer's
Salaries, contribution Employee
allowances  Discretionary to pension  share option
Fees  and benefits bonuses scheme benefits Total
5o 2R RiRET A EEBRE
e KR BiE#Re EEHH B Fee]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
- 5477 769 232 231 6,709
- 2,500 576 115 231 3,422
- 583 - - 95 678
- 4,399 323 203 231 5,156
- 1,765 130 81 231 2,207
- 1,714 489 79 231 2,513
- 1,554 94 61 231 1,940
- 1,714 252 79 231 2,276
362 - - - 95 457
300 - - - 95 395
68 - - - - 68
270 - - - - 270
17 - - - - 117
Bt
(i) RZE—=ZF+—A=+—HZF-
(ii) RZE——F+HA+HZEE-
@iy HIT-——F+A—HBEI-
(@] AuBSHEMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

for the year include five (2011: five) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above.

AEFEERSHFHOACALBERL(=
T——% A EF  MMNFHELXZ
HE9 D TR R
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30 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years
— Other loans
— Finance lease liabilities

Less: amounts capitalised on
qualifying assets

31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

30 BERA
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
w18
—REFREHEED
RITER 50,503 78,162
—HEEXR 2,689 151
—mEHEaE 115 155
53,307 78,468
B BTMERABEBREERN
&5 - (8,500)
53,307 69,968

31 FiSHiXi

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. The Company'’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin Islands
income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at
the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for
the year. Subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China enterprise income tax of 25%
(2011: 24% to 25%) on their taxable income determined
according to Mainland China tax laws. Taxation on other
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

ARRARHERERBAEEZE T —X
FoREBRELBEER ZHEART
CHRBEIEENER - BEMNE/R
BAEEEAEAREAEBNERM
BHMZ165%(—F——%F :16.5%) &
e REBRPEZHEAFBEHKF
BIEFTER B BRAEE R
Fri82 25% (8 ——4F : 24% &£ 25%)
TE - Eu8iNER 2 RIBERE G
FERERRAFBNEAEBFKLEEERR

ZIRITHEFHE -

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax: REHIE -
— Hong Kong profits tax — HEMNER - 500
— Mainland China taxation — i IE 4,543 1,869
— Overseas taxation — GHNELTE - 151
4,543 2,520
Adjustments in respect of prior years: LARTSFE % -
— Hong Kong profits tax — BABNEH (68) 87
— Mainland China taxation — i IE 54 575
(14) 662
Deferred tax: EIEFTSHL
Origination and reversal of TREZENES
temporary differences K #d[m) (4,515) 6,625
Income tax expense FrS®isz 14 9,807
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 31 FiBBXHE)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from RNREBEBEGRAERAER 2 HBEHE
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of EHBAAATATBER HEMmMtE
the home country of the Company as follows: FBETIRE v EREA T
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss before income tax BRETISTLATE 1B (457,794) (282,397)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% RHE 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) (ZZ——F 1 165%):1H (75.536) (46,595)
Effect of different taxation rates in HEBERTERMRRER
other countries a7 1,793 2,581
Income not subject to taxation HEIERI 2 WA (470) (1,022)
Expenses not deductible for LIEiD v
taxation purposes S H 68,151 46,771
Unrecognised tax losses REERF 18 45,620 9,872
Adjustments in respect of prior years LARTFEFZE (14) 662
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FERRERIARAEER
tax losses k= (110) -
Others HEy (39,420) (2,462)
Tax charge FIESZE 14 9,807
32 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 32 XPFIERFEARLER
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with ERARRFBEmE R ZARA G S
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of A ANEIREEIEL B 17,086,000 7T
a loss of approximately HK$17,086,000 (2011: —E——14F : B#6,164,0007T) ©
HK$6,164,000).
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33 LOSS PER SHARE 33 SREE
Basic and diluted HARR#E
Basic and diluted loss per share are calculated by dividing SREADEEEBBEANTERE
the loss attributable to owners of the Company by the BAENER  BIAERDRTERER
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during M BB s E o
the year.
2012 2011

Loss attributable to owners of RARERFEA

the Company (HK$'000) FEIEEE (BT T) (465,055) (304,687)
Weighted average number of ordinary AT R A N5 &

shares in issue (thousands) (F3h) 4,644,920 4,795,962
Basic and diluted loss per share FREAR S EE

(HK cents per share) (FREN) (10.01) (6.35)
The outstanding share options have an anti-dilutive effect MATTENBRESBE _T——F K
on the basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December CE-CETA=TRHILFENE
2011 and 2012. BEREEEFEREEER -

34 DIVIDENDS 3 RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final EERIMRMBE_ZT—ZF+_HA
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). =+—HIEFERNKREERE(ZE——
Fom) e
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 35 ,f,ﬁ?/a\fﬁ, RER H‘J’?
FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations (a) HEE4L (FFANES
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Loss for the year FEEE (457,808) (292,204)
Adjustments for: R
— Tax — A 14 9,807
— Depreciation — e 11,330 11,267
— Amortisation — By 7,920 7,348
— Goodwill impairment charge — HERE 394,030 -
— Impairment losses on an associate — Bt N RIRE 2,237 -
— Losses on disposal of property, — HEYE - EER
plant and equipment By | 65 449
— Share option expenses — BiREZ S 266 3,739
— Fair value gains on investment —REMENRTE
properties g (49,060) (38,611)
— Fair value (gains)/losses on financial — AT ESRBIER
assets at fair value through 5']%?9’]97@5‘%5?2
profit or loss NEE W), EE (2,863) 9,033
— Fair value losses on other financial —He W BEEY
assets NEEFEE 686 277,709
— Dividends received from financial — WEURZ AT EE S
assets at fair value through bl Eolr i
profit or loss BERE (80) (85)
— Interest income — FEHA (2,653) (2,360)
— Finance costs — BB 53,307 69,968
— Share of losses/(profits) of — Frih g A A
associates &8 (&F) 521 (4,668)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate — INETEREE) 2
changes B (2,490) (3,198)
(44,578) 48,194
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
— Inventories —Fg 60,232 127,655
— Bills and accounts receivable — R RIE KN IRIE 97,640 (154,717)
— Deposits, prepayments and — & - EIRK
other receivables He sk 85,445 120,666
— Bills and accounts payable — BN EEKEMNRIE 11,022 (126,131)
— Other payables and accruals — HEEMIRE R IER
2 (920) (28,109)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ‘&EE4S (FTH) MRS 208,841 (12,442)
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (continued)

35 SERTRERMEE)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (b) BERAESEBYEGDIMN
equivalents

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Cash at banks and on hand RITMEFRS 204,832 158,041
Short-term bank deposits RHRTTIF R 24,665 88,569
229,497 246,610
Less: Pledged bank deposits B EIRRITIF R (24,665) (25,124)

Short-term bank deposits with REHEA
original maturity of more than =EANREZ

three months 72 BAERI TR 3K - (29,686)
Bank overdrafts RITEX (5,758) (866)

199,074 190,934

36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 RERIJIARER
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Contracted but not provided BENEREE

— Property, plant and equipment — Y BES KRB 12,802 12,722

— Investment in an associate —BERRIRE - 11,343

12,802 24,065

2012F 3 ERIERERAT
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 RERUASEE)
(continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments — where the (b) HEHAERIE —KAEBAEAAA
Group is the lessee
At 31 December 2012, the Group had future R-E——F+—_A=+—8 &
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BIRBE A 2 SEHREMMN A
cancellable operating leases as follows: RE N HERENZK@AENT :
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Not later than one year TR —F 6,874 2,383
Later than one year and not —FRETNEBRF
later than five years 19,946 6,751
Over five years HB@aF 14,410 15,674
41,230 24,808
() Operating leases — where the Group is the lessor (0 HEMHE —FEEARALBEA
At 31 December 2012, the Group had future NZT——F+-_A=+—H =K
minimum lease payments receivable under non- EERBERIHEN S EBE MR
cancellable operating leases as follows: RIRWE 2 KA E R IB LT
™
2012 2011
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not later than one year BB —F 34,754 21,964
Later than one year and not BR—FENERATF
later than five years 45,263 50,782
Over five years HBidAF 2,613 5,926
82,630 78,672
Contingent-based rents recognised in the consolidated REREBEAERNLAHSOR
income statement were approximately HK$2,620,000 2,620,000 (ZE——4F : &
(2011: HK$1,731,000). #1,731,0007T) °
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(d) Corporate guarantees

Guarantees for general banking facilities A4 A AR TRIE K&

and loan facilities granted to associates ERBEER 2 &R

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage  ASEEYEEEE
facilities granted to the buyers of R\ ERMmAERT
the Group's properties YEH 2 PR

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

(e) Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

At 31 December 2012, the Group had commitment in
respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts with the maximum aggregate notional
amounts of US dollar of 56,000,000.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had commitment in
respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to buy a maximum amounts of US
dollar of 34,000,000 and 2,261,050 against Hong
Kong dollar and Euro respectively and a maximum
amounts of Renminbi of 750,400,000 against US
dollar.

(f) Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s contingent
liabilities relating to Mainland China land appreciation
tax amounted to approximately HK$30,800,000
(2011: HK$30,572,000).

36 FAERJARKEHE)

(d)

(e)

()

DEER
2012 2011
HK$"000 HK$'000
BETT BT
22,420 11,260
% 94
22,514 11,354

EERR - LRERR—REHBE
BRTEeEAEARE  MAKE
PrEEtt R AR 2 X SHEME DK ©

EHMNESLH

RZE——F+-_A=+—H" &
SERBITRRIIMNES KFEIES
SAZEARE 556,000,000 7T °
w= —#®+-_A=+—H8" 'K

= —
EEARBITRRIINES DFEIES
& % ZA B A 34,000,000 K
2,261,050 7t 5 I ¥ 7T R BT
& & % A 8% A 750,400,000 A R
HETT °

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H &
EEEBETE IR ERNIARE
1& 497 % 30,800,000 7L ( =& — —
@ @ B¥30,572,0007T) °

20126 BEHERERAR
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37 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37 EAEIEREXRTS
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without WEARAEERZ &) (TReiEs
change of control )
On 20 June 2011, the Group exercised the call option R-E——FNA-+H KEFIBE
granted by Tai Xin Minerals Limited pursuant to the call —E-FHF— [ -+ AR ER
option agreement dated 22 January 2010, Tai Xin Minerals = 17{F B Tai Xin Minerals Limited %
Limited issued and allotted 64 new shares of US$1 each in B R B PR AE © Tai Xin Minerals Limited A
the share capital of Tai Xin Minerals Limited to the Group on —E—— XA+ ERTRERS
27 June 2011. The Group increased its interest in the BT E1ETHARTRGD FAREHR -
enlarged issued share capital of Tai Xin Minerals Limited by REB £ Tai Xin Minerals Limited LA (B
19.12% by way of issuing new shares of Tai Xin Minerals BITHRE A B A D BT IR A 25
Limited at premium, for a purchase consideration of #OIN19.12% @ W BE & (B & & ﬁﬁé}
HK$259,000,000. The carrying amount of the non- 259,000,000 7T ° 72 ¢ Ak B8 A% 72 & B
controlling interests in Tai Xin Minerals Limited and its Tai Xin Minerals Limited 5z E [ B 2~ TE’J
subsidiaries on the date of the completion of call option was JE1R A% #E 25 7 0R [E {8 49,8 15 70,124,000
approximately HK$70,124,000. The Group recognised an TC o ANEE B R IEIE PR K 25 2 0 T {H 12
increase in non-controlling interests of approximately D47 £ 50,025,000 7T ) HE R 25 67 B
HK$50,025,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to RAREBEHA AR D48 150,025,000
owners of the Group of approximately HK$50,025,000. IT o
38 CHARGE ON ASSETS 38 SEER
At 31 December 2012, the following assets were pledged: N—EE——F+—A=+—H8 UTE&
EETER
(@)  Certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings (@) EPMEELH - T F R RES
with a net book amount of approximately WE T )5 {8 49745 %6 94,725,000 7T ( —
HK$94,725,000 (2011: HK$98,110,000); T ——4F : ##98,110,0007T) ;
(b)  Certain motor vehicles and machinery with a net book (b) EBMH R E ok BR 0E [ E (E 4950
amount of approximately HK$1,681,000 (2011: 1,681,000 ( =& — —F : B
HK$4,105,000); 4,105,000 7T) :
(¢) Certain investment properties of approximately () ER &Y EE 4 41£879,310,000
HK$879,310,000 (2011: HK$731,433,000); TT(=Z——4 : #% 731,433,000
J)
(d) Certain short-term bank deposits of approximately d ZHEBBLITERLYEK
HK$24,665,000 (2011: HK$25,124,000); and 24,665,00070( =& ——4F : B
25,124,0007T) : &
(e) Interest of shares in certain subsidiaries. (e) EPMHMIBATIRIIRZHEZS -
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39

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEEAIRS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012:

MR BRERECIEHEHEIN
REZ2-FT——F+-_A=+—HIHF
ELHETUTERBBREALTRS

REE

(@)  Related party transactions which were carried out in () REE--MBEEEITETZEE
the normal course of the Group’s business are as FHRZRSWT :
follows:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Rental income received from an associate B YE & A = YA 3,625 2,684
Service income received from associates £ UE 4 A B PRSI A 617 596
Interest income received from an associate = YzEi 44 A =17 S U A 22 -
(b)  Compensation to key management personnel by FEEEAEMR
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT T T
Wages and salaries FHeIlE& 22,764 22,514
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EARK A — R EHKETE 889 850
Staff welfare B T1EH 1,109 942
Employee share option benefits & B AR R 444 1,902
25,206 26,208
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39

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 BEMARRE(E)
(c)  Details of loan to a director of the Company, disclosed (0 WREATEHE16IBIEMABAIE

pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Name of borrower

fERAER

Position

B

Terms of the loan
Bt
— interest rate
— Fi%
— security

— A

— repayment term
— BRFH

— borrowing date
— &% H

Balance of loan in respect of principal and interest
ERARE RN B AR

— at 31 December 2011
—RZE——F+ZA=1+—H

— at 31 December 2012
—RZE——F+ZA=1+—H

Maximum balance outstanding during the year
FA=RNEE

RAERERZHBWT ¢

YIN Mark
FaT

Executive Director

WITES

4% per annum
FEME
unsecured
AR

4 years

e
26 March 2008

—FF)\E=A=+~A

HK$195,000
7B ¥4 195,000 7T

HK$195,000
71 195,000 7T
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Schedule of Properties held for Investment X & ¥ ¥ — & XK

Address Lease Existing use  Group's interest
b HYESE RiTAR SEEES
537 Wenchang Road Central, Medium lease Commercial 69%
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, HRHAFR 49 [SES

China

hEDT AR

BINT

X EF 537 5%
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Five Years’ Financial Summary f F B i1 &

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ZAEEBERFEMKREE Y X5  BEREE

financial years are as follows: mr
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETR ERTR BETR BETR

Results #i2
Sales HE 4,916,324 7,623,154 6,080,074 3,256,714 8,334,596
Gross profit EH 95,309 179,129 156,753 97,754 223,221
Operating (loss)/profit mE (&8) /B8R (7,013) 60,612 81,918 67,227 215,547
(Loss)/Profit attributable to:  (18)/BFEBR
Owners of the Company AREERFEA (465,055) (304,687) 549,444 (4,646) (148,808)
Non-controlling interests JEIER R 7,247 12,483 14,820 12,310 43,905
(457,808) (292,204) 564,264 7,664 (104,903)
Assets and liabilities BENER
Non-current assets EREEE 1,671,482 2,021,916 1,908,966 1,206,860 994,984
Current assets TREEE 1,733,207 2,022,876 2,502,844 1,891,420 1,669,053
Total assets BEE 3,404,689 4,044,792 4,411,810 3,098,280 2,664,037
Non-current liabilities E =l 455,695 415,136 550,719 398,352 98,078
Current liabilities TREAE 1,206,017 1,363,063 1,599,825 1,111,877 1,096,638
Total liabilities EEY= 1,661,712 1,778,199 2,150,544 1,510,229 1,194,716
Total equity R 1,742,977 2,266,593 2,261,266 1,588,051 1,469,321
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